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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-T——F T -_A=T—"HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

hpzs FHET AT

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

FLEMA Interest income 6 1,032,602 1,141,383

FESH Interest expense 7 (177,789) (170,802)

=2 SUS N Net interest income 854,813 970,581

BERER T2 Net premiums earned 8 658,854 583,377

Eug A Other income 9 197,865 169,868

ZEWN Operating income 1,711,532 1,723,826

RREL /(FE) 25 Net claims written back/(incurred) 8 17,618 (6,345)

ez e Net commission expenses 8 (108,000) (159,101)

ZEYH Operating expenses 10 (191,932) (171,425)

RITBERHNZLE R Operating profit before impairment 1,429,218 1,386,955

HORE (% %)/ Bk (Charge)/write-back of loan

impairment allowances 13 (3,141) 16,663

ZEHR Operating profit 1,426,077 1,403,618

R 5 2L IR i SRR A1) Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23 2,830 2,259

B BRI T Profit before taxation 1,428,907 1,405,877

T I Taxation 14(a) (173,225) (172,015)

AREE i F) Profit for the year 1,255,682 1,233,862
M &i#EH /(SHR) Profit/(loss) attributable to:

AR Equity holders of the Company 1,255,731 1,233,532

Y IEI AE G Non-controlling interests (49) 330

1,255,682 1,233,862

F12Z2 19 AT ME N RAEMESIREKA —  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated

o o financial statements.

LR 2 Proposed dividend 16 350,000 350,000
EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-T——FT-_A=T—"HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FE TFH#ET AT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
INEERF Profit for the year 1,255,682 1,233,862
Hfh e mmias: Other comprehensive income:
A SRS Available-for-sale securities:
- KPR 25 - unrealised net gains 31 107,682 143,631
- HERAFEERZEA — fair value changes transferred to income
Wk statement on disposal 31 (51,884) (40,554)
— T IR - tax effect 31 (9,316) (17,307)
— JfE4H — amortisation 31 663 1,809
PRI - Cash flow hedges:
- EEREEMEmRERIAG —net gains arising from hedges recognised
TR RS A in other comprehensive income 31 2,396 26,340
- BAM G R N THEZRD) — fair value changes transferred
to income statement 31 10,195 (79)
— B IR - tax effect 31 (2,078) (4,333)
HREG ML ST =AY Exchange differences on translation
LR ER of foreign operations
- I AR — subsidiary 5,366 4,309
— HEHR ISR — jointly controlled entity 31 (3,784) 13,108
JS7 o FE R ) SRR Share of other comprehensive income
Hfh 2 EHE of a jointly controlled entity 31 279 163
AEFHEMEER L - Other comprehensive income
B FHIBR TR I for the year, net of tax 59,519 127,087
AEELEWE ST Total comprehensive income for the year 1,315,201 1,360,949
RNa Sy Total comprehensive income attributable to:

ANATIRRZR Equity holders of the Company 1,314,713 1,360,188

AR BRI AR R Non-controlling interests 488 761
1,315,201 1,360,949
F1022 189 AT M E NG A M IREA —  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
oy e financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

T=F——F%+-HA=1—H
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
{hpzs FHET AT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
R ASSETS
NekEPRe Cash and short-term funds 17 10,245,165 5,902,649
RIMF B R Interest and remittance receivables 18 590,998 657,150
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,559,187 1,396,621
RS S Loan portfolio, net 20 33,135,818 35,258,937
IEAR Investment securities:
-t E — available-for-sale 21(a) 2,303,703 3,403,966
- FEE 5 - held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,269,148 8,033,133
 [F3HI ST IR Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 130,045 130,720
jﬁﬁw\lﬁ\ e R EMR>E Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 27,097 27,659
Eilalivae Fixed assets 25 31,274 17,252
AR R = Reinsurance assets 27 208,911 204,891
AFELRE Total assets 56,501,346 55,032,978
% LIABILITIES
IVENENIES Interest payable 237,244 493,553
RATKIR - ST & Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
Eim liabilities 26 4,274,883 4,291,137
PTEESRT A Derivative financial instruments 19 139,582 44,372
L AR I S i Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 134,785 133,560
12 JEFR I F 57 Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 52,672 37167
IRE& fa 5 Insurance liabilities 27 1,630,595 1,773,665
B RIS A Debt securities issued 28 41,097,207 39,127,735
B RITIREIE & Mortgage-backed securities issued 29 367,137 1,529,749
RS Total liabilities 47,934,105 47,430,938
oz EQUITY
WA AN G K% Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders:
H§$ Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
R & F Retained profits 5,173,228 4,561,624
XUBS i = contingency reserve 31 731,562 437,435
NEEES Fair value reserve 31 302,615 255,191
SHRfiE Hedging reserve 31 (13,244) (23,757)
SCRAER Translation reserve 31 10,911 9,866
EURAR B Proposed dividend 16 350,000 350,000
8,555,072 7,590,359
IR IE S AR R R AR Non-controlling interests in equity 12,169 11,681
W EE Total equity 8,567,241 7,602,040
W R RS Total equity and liabilities 56,501,346 55,032,978

EERET - —SWA=THERIFENT] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April
{T° 2012.

GER Norman T. L. Chan ZEEE Peter S. T. Pang
B|EEFEHITESE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director WITEF Executive Director

F£102 2189 MR E M ENGZAMEIRKRA—3F  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
) o financial statements.
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R S
Statement of Financial Position

T=F——%+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FE TFH#ET AT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
0 ASSETS
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 17 10,121,847 5,769,509
RIMH) B S5k Interest and remittance receivables 18 578,070 645,232
TAESmIT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,559,187 1,372,522
IR Loan portfolio, net 20 28,006,425 31,392,398
IEAIRR Investment securities:
- AMEHE — available-for-sale 21(a) 2,303,703 3,403,966
- FE8E 5|8 — held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,269,148 8,033,133
CIENGIE A Investment in subsidiaries 22 4,986,708 3,205,632
H FR S SRR R Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 120,554 120,554
TRITERIN - 425 J HoAth 5 7= Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 188,787 29,220
[E TR e Fixed assets 25 30,949 15,980
BR &= Reinsurance assets 27 208,911 204,891
RFERE Total assets 56,374,289 54,193,037
fafk LIABILITIES
N AR B Interest payable 237,128 491,231
RIIRIR RIS FFSE & Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
Hfh (5 liabilities 26 4,634,004 4,792,266
PTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 19 139,582 44,372
LHEAT IS 57 Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 135,131 134,532
155 JE R IR 47 (5T Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 52,696 37167
IRE& A f5R Insurance liabilities 27 1,630,595 1,773,665
BAITRSUES Debt securities issued 28 41,097,207 39,405,886
TERE Total liabilities 47,926,343 46,679,119
R EQUITY
W FFE AN SRR R : Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders:
% Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
IREB & A Retained profits 5,077,455 4,495,212
MBS i Contingency reserve 31 731,562 437,435
NTEER Fair value reserve 31 302,173 255,028
SR E & Hedging reserve 31 (13,244) (23,757)
PUR A S, Proposed dividend 16 350,000 350,000
2 S ER Total equity 8,447,946 7,513,918
Wz K RS E Total equity and liabilities 56,374,289 54,193,037

EEROT-E——_FNMA=+H#ENREN Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April

F57 o 2012.
GiEH Norman T. L. Chan ZEEE Peter S. T. Pang
B|EEFEHITESE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director WITEFE Executive Director

F£102 2189 MR M E NG AWM EIRERAN—2F  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
e financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T——F T -_A=T—"HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

RAFIRRRRL G
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
SRR
IAHR
RAS  fREBEAFI* HAbfiE Non-
Share Retained Other  controlling Ait
capital profits* reserves interests Total
BE FAT FAT FHIT FHIT FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E—FF—F—H%R Balance as at 1 January 2010 2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10,920 6,741,091
ANEZ Profit for the year - 1,233,532 - 330 1,233,862
A SRR A FEK S Net fair value gains of available-
BRI for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 87,742 - 87,742
PRI 2 Net change in cash flow hedges,
EHIRFIR net of tax 31 - - 21928 - 21928
BREFINF TR Exchange differences on
LR ZE translation of foreign operations
-HEAR — subsidiary 31 - - 3,878 431 4,309
— HEIE SRR —jointly controlled entity 31 - = 13,108 = 13,108
RNEELEKER Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,233,532 126,656 761 1,360,949
R R AL HE Transfer of 50% of net risk
Wﬁﬁ%%@%ﬁﬁ’] 50% premium earned from retained
ERRES profits to contingency reserve 31 - (260,282) 260,282 = =
KRN AR ERE A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 12,680 (12,680) - -
BN =EENERE Dividend paid related to 2009 - (500,000) - = (500,000)
F-F—-FF+-A=+—H%1% Balance as at 31 December 2010 2,000,000 4,911,624 678,735 11,681 7,602,040
REEHF /(S1R) Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,255,731 - (49) 1,255,682
A EIERA A FER S Net fair value gains of available-
EHIBRTRIN for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - = 47,424 = 47,424
B aip Maal: O )X Net change in cash flow hedges,
BT net of tax 31 - - 10,513 - 10,513
BREFIN SR = AR Exchange differences on
LRZER translation of foreign operations
- HEAR — subsidiary 31 - - 4,829 537 5,366
[ 4 SRR — jointly controlled entity 31 = = (3,784) = (3,784)
REELEE BN Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,255,731 58,982 488 1,315,201
BRE R AR HE Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
MBS IR 2R 4380/ 50% premium earned from retained
75% ZE NS fE R profits to contingency reserve 31 - (307,140) 307,140 - -
KB X % R 2 IR A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 13,013 (13,013) - -
BT -FFRE Dividend paid related to 2010 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
F-E——%5+-HA=+—H%4% Balance as at 31 December 2011 2,000,000 5,523,228 1,031,844 12,169 8,567,241

* FoE——F+-_A=+—H EMNRE *
i 71 7R %1 #£ 350,000,000 7T (= F —F 4 -
350,000,000 77t ) {E R BURAKAAAR S,

As at 31 December 2011, HK$350 million (2010: HK$350 million) was
earmarked as proposed final dividend from retained profits.

FI1RE 189 TATHME N ZAMEIRERAN—  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
o e financial statements.

EBRBIIE AR A The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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eI RE
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-T——FT-_A=T—"HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FE F#T AT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ZEVSRBAESRE Cash flows from operating activities
25 A Operating profit 1,426,077 1,403,618
FAT S TUEH #91%E - Adjustment for:
R EUA Interest income (1,043,095) (1,151,373)
FEZH Interest expense 111,620 116,949
% S A Dividend income 9 (65,071) (43,595)
I Depreciation 10 8,609 12,928
HEBE RSN Loss on disposal of fixed assets 51 -
B AITRSE S e Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 66,169 53,853
HORER % /() Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances 13 3,141 (16,663)
Uz [el il 4 A BT R Recoveries of loans previously written off 20(b) 2,452 4,760
BT T4 Unwind of discount on impairment - (79)
A EIEFRIEREE Amortisation of unrealised loss on
FIHAIE A AR I available-for-sale securities transferred
SR to held-to-maturity securities 31 663 1,809
UEAIS Fm M M4 Amortisation of premium on investment
securities 9,830 8,181
HEIE AW 230 Net gain on disposal of investments 12 (64,952) (64,752)
SR TANFEED) Change in fair value of financial instruments (5,999) 4,832
RIS TR E Change in translation of financial assets
SRR under cash flow hedge 31 2,396 26,340
AW E RIS DT Fair value changes of cash flow hedge
NEED) transferred to income statement 31 10,195 (79)
B U E Interest received 1,296,840 1,123,624
EAFE Interest paid (367,929) (69,183)
RITARE R RAGZENE Cash flows from operating activities before
ZEWSSPIR i)”/f i changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,390,997 1,411,170
REEEBIE=AEEIERR Change in time deposits with original maturity
E R TR A of more than three months 1,101,734 (1,117,896)
NUCCFRE Change in remittance receivables (187,576) 81,129
USRI~ =& R EM A=A Change in prepayments, deposits and other assets 897 3,438
WEA T Change in loan portfolio 2,117,526 8,541,761
RATIRIN - RASTHFSE Change in accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hh iRz and other liabilities (16,286) 16,960
R LR AL Change in insurance liabilities, net (147,090) 372,557
SNTSC 3 ZE 5 Exchange differences (25,063) (6,535)
ZREME fﬁ'é Cash generated from operation 4,235,139 9,302,584
ENEAFEE Hong Kong profits tax paid (167,889) (176,466)
ZEWSFEI € %30 Net cash generated from operating activities 4,067,250 9,126,118

BI85 R A 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
F——FEF4f Annual Report 2011



2011 2010
FE FH#ET AT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BRRBDABRETE Cash flows from investing activities

) 3K [& & R = Purchase of fixed assets 25 (22,877) (8,866)

SR ATt &if % Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (645,167) (4,263,000)

%37 2 5| BE 5 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (1,743,272) | (4,341,842)

i B R TS R Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 230 -

K B Bl Al H & IE Proceeds from sale and redemption of

TS ERI0 available-for-sale securities 1,867,014 4,644,210

& K BB £ B HiE 5 Proceeds from sale and redemption

FT{S 5131 of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) 1,508,858 2,130,621
BUATHEEIEAFRE Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 64,740 45,093
RESFE /(BT ) Net cash generated from/(used in)

P& A5 investing activities 1,029,526 (1,793,784)
MR ERNET Net cash inflows before financing 5,096,776 7,332,334
MR ESABAERE Cash flows from financing activities

RITRSIUEFFTE I Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 28,525,186 8,193,535

BRI A1 TS5 Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (26,707,868) = (13,838,443)

BRI THABIE IR 3R Repayment of mortgage-backed

securities issued 29 (1,138,513) (470,471)

EfARE Dividend paid 16 (350,000) (500,000)
BEESETS /(FTA) Net cash generated from/(used in)

&2 financing activities 328,805 (6,615,379)
by e AR = Byl b Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,425,581 716,955
FEYNERERUETE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 4,545,074 3,828,119
ILERPERERNETE Effect of exchange rates on cash and

= cash equivalents 15,358 -
FARYERERNESTHE Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 9,986,013 4,545,074

102 2 189 T B &k M /£ H 47

#5 -

AMEIREH —  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2011
(i) The following standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2011, which are relevant to the Group:

m HKAS 24 (revised) Related Party Disclosures clarifies and
simplifies the definition of a related party. It also provides
a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements
for government-related entities to disclose details of all
transactions with the government and other government-
related entities. The Group has not applied the exemption
from the disclosure requirements for the government-
related entities and has early adopted this revised
standard in 2010.

A &) The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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m Third improvements to HKFRSs (2010) were issued in May
2010 by HKICPA, which are effective in the financial year
of 2011. These changes result in additional disclosures
with no material impact on the financial position or the
comprehensive income of the Group.

(i) The following amendments and interpretations effective in

2011, are not currently relevant to the Group (although they
may affect the accounting for future transactions):

m HKAS 32 (amendment) Classification of Rights Issues.

m HK (IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments.

m HK (IFRIC) - Int 14 (amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement.

m Amendment to HKFRS 1 Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters.

(b) Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective

(i) The following new standards and amendments relevant to

the Group have been issued but not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2011 and have not been early
adopted:

m HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements
changes the disclosure of items presented in other
comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive
income. The amendment requires entities to separate
items presented in other comprehensive income into two
groups, based on whether or not they may be recycled to
profit or loss in the future. Items that will not be recycled
will be presented separately from items that may be
recycled in the future. Entities that choose to present other
comprehensive income items before tax will be required
to show the amount of tax related to the two groups
separately. The title used by HKAS 1 for the statement of
comprehensive income has changed to ‘statement of profit

BERBIFER
—F——%FF Annual Report 2011
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or loss and other comprehensive income’. However, HKAS
1 still permits entities to use other titles. The amendment
is applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012 with early adoption permitted. The Group is assessing
the impacts of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and intends to adopt
HKAS 1 (Amendment) upon its effective date.

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation
- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
clarifies the requirements for offsetting financial
instruments on the statement of financial position: (i) the
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off’; and (i) that some gross settlement systems may be
considered equivalents to net settlement. The amendment
is applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014. The Group is assessing the impacts of
HKAS 32 (Amendment) and intends to adopt HKAS 32
(Amendment) upon its effective date.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets introduces new disclosure requirement
on transfers of financial assets. Disclosure is required
by class of asset of the nature, carrying amount and a
description of the risks and rewards of financial assets that
have been transferred to another party yet remain on the
entity’s balance sheet. The gain or loss on the transferred
assets and any retained interest in those assets must be
disclosed. In addition, other disclosures must enable users
to understand the amount of any associated liabilities,
and the relationship between the financial assets and
associated liabilities. The disclosures must be presented
by type of ongoing involvement. The amendment is
applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011 with early adoption permitted. The Group is assessing
the impacts of HKFRS 7 (Amendment) and intends to adopt
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) upon its effective date.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities requires
new disclosure requirements which focus on quantitative
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information about recognised financial instruments that
are offset in the statement of financial position, as well as
those recognised financial instruments that are subject
to master netting or similar arrangements irrespective of
whether they are offset. The amendment is applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The
Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
and intends to adopt HKFRS 7 (Amendment) upon its
effective date.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, which replaces part of the HKAS 39.

Financial assets are required to be classified into
two measurement categories: those to be measured
subsequently at fair value, and those to be measured
subsequently at amortised cost. The decision is to be
made at initial recognition. The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised
cost only if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of
the entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect
the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual
cash flows represent only payments of principal and
interest (that is, it has only ‘basic loan features’). All other
debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently
at fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading
will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For
all other equity instruments, an irrevocable election can
be made at initial recognition, to recognise unrealised
and realised fair value gains and losses through other
comprehensive income rather than profit or loss. There
is no recycling of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss. This election may be made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit or
loss, as long as they represent return on investment.

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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A &) The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

All the requirements in HKAS 39 for the accounting and
presentation for financial liabilities and for derecognition of
financial instruments were carried forward unchanged to
HKFRS 9, except for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option.

For the financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented separately in
other comprehensive income, unless presentation of the
fair value change attributable to the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss where an entity
shall recognise all fair value movements in the profit or
loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the amounts
in the other comprehensive income to profit or loss, but
accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within
equity.

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) amended the effective date of
HKFRS 9 which is required to be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is considering the implications of the
whole standard including other phases of HKFRS 9 on the
Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Mandatory Effective
Date and Transition Disclosures delay the effective date
to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015,
and also modify the relief from restating prior periods. As
part of this relief, additional disclosures on transition from
HKAS 39 to HKFRS 9 are required.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements replaces
all of the guidance on control and consolidation in HKAS
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
and HK(SIC)-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKAS 27 is renamed Separate Financial Statements and
it continues to be a standard dealing solely with separate
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financial statements. The existing guidance for separate
financial statements is unchanged. The revised definition
of control under HKFRS 10 focuses on the need to have
both power and variable returns before control is present.
Power is the current ability to direct the activities that
significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and
can be positive, negative or both. The determination of
power is based on current facts and circumstances and is
continuously assessed. The fact that control is intended
to be temporary does not obviate the requirement to
consolidate any investee under the control of the investor.
The standard is applicable to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption permitted. The
Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 10 and intends to
adopt HKFRS 10 upon its effective date.

m HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements changes the definitions

to reduce the types of joint arrangements to two, joint
operations and joint ventures. The jointly controlled
assets classification in HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
has been merged into joint operations, as both types of
arrangements generally result in the same accounting
outcome. The standard is applicable to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 11
and intends to adopt HKFRS 11 upon its effective date.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities sets
out the required disclosures for entities reporting under
the two new standards, HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. It replaces
the disclosure requirements currently found in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. The existing guidance and
disclosure requirements for separate financial statements
are unchanged under HKAS 27.

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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A &) The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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HKFRS 12 requires entities to disclose information that
helps financial statement readers to evaluate the nature,
risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements
and unconsolidated structured entities. The standard is
applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 with early adoption permitted. The Group is assessing
the impacts of HKFRS 12 and intends to adopt HKFRS 12
upon its effective date.

m HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements explains how to
measure fair value and aims to enhance fair value
disclosures. The standard is applicable to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 13
and intends to adopt HKFRS 13 upon its effective date.

(i) The following amendments which is not effective in 2011 is
not expected to be relevant to the Group:

m HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters.

m HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax : Recovery of
Underlying Assets.

m HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group



(c

=

~

BRABEEHIRESEARERS AL
SEEFAAI - IR IZEHIRNE LS
B&IFGZRE K -

REFKARBARZS - HEIREAR
TYWE2BENH - RIFEFIERE
ERRGHAEIL R~ HIVRE - &
MARSEIFRITRL T LA 4 © 1B
2 MEARNSITBEFELE
o RS ASE B 2 -

RIEHI BRI F AR R A B
BB AR EEIRA NN A
MEARERTHE D  AREFHE
S5ZER@FE AP EEFEAINSEK
S EA KB BEN T E A FUE
MENZE N B B TUE © &I
MR EZEMZRAR KRGS 2E
WK 25 » SARRARRFE AN
DITEF o AR RL 5 AN ]
WS EE Sy - LR A WER EFIRIE
B BIR 5782 ) 2 [ B S E 4B A 99
[

EARNBNMSHREF - FHER
AR PR AR E DR (B R &5
K o B A Bl Z b SRR AR E K
K N B ARRRINKE °

S5REFARBRRZRS

REHE SEAZHIRR 2 2 501
SAEHRmTEANRKS ° A5
REFINAERIR - ERENRNS
ME2R RL 5 P B 28 B 43 7= A K TET B2 )
B ZE H TSI o HE T SRR
RMEZRBR B REFZ B - Massk
SHIFT a5k o

H[E) 4R HI S
HREHESISEAHE S MRS AR A
BARETNEZGEAE LRIZEHIN
MEBEELH o X HKRIZHI LR
REAM@ESIDEAN » B FEAKRA
HIA o

=)

controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of these interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities.
They are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the net profit for the year between non-
controlling interest and equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases
from the non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity are referred as jointly controlled entities.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost.

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the jointly controlled
entity are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment |oss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income other than insurance and guarantee
contracts under Note 2.21

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate are
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate in
determining interest income on the loans.
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(iii)

2.5

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit
or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a

(iii

=

measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is provided internally to the key management
personnel.

Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one
or more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash
flows, are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

EERBIIEER
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(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and for which the Group has no intention of trading
immediately or in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. If the Group was to sell other than
an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
investments that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in interest rate, exchange rate or market
prices. They are initially recognised at fair value including direct
and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently held
at fair value.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or 10ss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are
included in the income statement in the period in which they
arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(fair value reserve), until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be reclassified to income statement.
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However, interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
income statement when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are
based on current bid prices. If there is no active market for
a financial asset, the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other
valuation technigues commonly used by market participants.

Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

m significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

m a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

m the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a

concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

m initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other financial
reorganisation;

m the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
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m observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group, including:

—adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

—economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. For exposures which are not individually
significant, the Group will assess impairment either individually
or collectively. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment 0ss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics which are relevant to the estimation of future
cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of
the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.
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Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes
in related observable data from period to period which are
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance for
loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment 10ss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale investment
or a group of available-for-sale investments is impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in income
statement - is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
the instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of such change is reversed
through the income statement.
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(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as renegotiated loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position include
(i) notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt
Issuance Programme (“DIP"), (ii) notes offered to retail investors
through the placing banks in standalone retail bond issues and
under the Retail Bond Issuance Programme (“RBIP") and (iii) notes
issued under the Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN"). The
Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by the SPEs through
the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme are recorded
as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of financial
position on consolidation of the SPEs. These notes (including MBS)
are initially designated as either (i) financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or (i) other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge
and at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair value being recorded in the
income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
received, net of transaction costs incurred. The notes are
subsequently stated at amortised costs; any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the debt
securities using the effective interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or
losses, being the difference between the redemption/repurchase
amount and the carrying amount, are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which the redemption/repurchase takes
place.
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2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from market
prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
options pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as
assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is
negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from derivatives
are separately presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract
and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the
fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments
(fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of highly probable future cash
flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.
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Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used, is amortised to
income statement over the period to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 10Ss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to
the income statement.

Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for
sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are
derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets are measured at
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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2.1

2.12

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker is the person or group
that allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the
operating segments of an entity. The Group has determined the
Chief Executive Officer as its chief operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to
each segment by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms.
Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the
respective segment and apportionment of management overheads.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Group’s and the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(=)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated
with the closing rate as at the reporting date. If several exchange
rates are available, the forward rate is used at which the future
cash flows represented by the transaction or balance could have
been settled if those cash flows had occurred. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of
initial recognition; non-monetary items in a foreign currency that
are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary assets
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale, a distinction is made between translation differences
resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security
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and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

m Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

m Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

m All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

m Exchange differences arising from the above process are
reported in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve.

m On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially
disposed of, such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

2.13 Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

over the unexpired period of the lease
over the unexpired period of the lease

computer 3 years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entity, and other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that its interests in jointly controlled
entity are impaired. Such objective evidence includes whether there
has been any significant adverse changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the jointly
controlled entity operates or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost. If there is an indication
that an interest in an associate or jointly controlled entity is
impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised in income statement for the amount by which
the carrying amount is lower than the higher of the investment’s
fair value less costs to sell or value in use. Any reversal of such
impairment loss in subsequent periods is reversed through income
Statement.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is required upon
receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary concerned in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
subsidiary in the Company's statement of financial position exceeds
the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16

A &) The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising from investment in the subsidiary,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the difference will
not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged
or credited directly to other comprehensive income, is also
credited or charged directly to other comprehensive income and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave
are recognised when the absence occurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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2.17

2.18

(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee - administered funds. These pension
plans are generally funded by payments from employees and by
the Group.

The Group's contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by the portion of employer
contributions being forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to full vesting of the employer contributions.

(d) Termination benefits

=

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of each reporting period date are discounted to present
value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation.

Leases

(@) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as
lessee. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor
by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in
which termination takes place.
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(b) Finance leases
Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
The Group entered into finance leases primarily as lessor.
Finance leases are capitalised as receivables at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The difference between the gross receivable and the present
value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return. Hire purchase contracts having the
characteristics of a finance lease are accounted for in the same
manner as finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances
with banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

The guarantees given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued by the Company for the timely repayment of guaranteed
MBS are recorded as financial guarantees under HKAS 39 in the
Company'’s statement of financial position.

Other financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
2.21 ().
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2.21 Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage Insurance
Programme of the Group is accounted for on the annual
accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach, the
Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future
income and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result includes any
adjustments arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the
Authorized Institutions as defined in accordance with Banking
Ordinance during an accounting period. The gross premiums
after deduction of discounts, include the reinsurance premiums
to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums and
servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums are
recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during the
time the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums
written which are estimated to relate to risks and services
subsequent to the end of each reporting period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred
but not reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting
period. For risk-sharing business, 50% or 75% of the net risk
premiums earned in a year depending on the respective
products is set aside as a Contingency Reserve for a period of
time in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals from the
Contingency Reserve can be made to meet excess claims at any
time during the period. At the end of the reporting period, the
unutilised balance of the Contingency Reserve can be released
to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the
Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated
for losses on one or more insurance contracts issued by
the Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of claims recoverable from
reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an
expense.

Ccommissions are recognised in the income statement as
incurred.
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(b) Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan facilities
provided to eligible small and medium-sized enterprises and
non-listed enterprises (SMES), in return for guarantee fee, and
insurance coverage on reverse mortgage provided to elderly
people, in return for insurance premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate on
each reporting date, using the current estimates of future cash
flows under these contracts. If the assessment shows that the
carrying amount of its guarantee and insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the insurance
premium earned in a year is set aside as a Contingency Reserve
for a period of time in accordance with relevant regulatory
guidelines and as considered by directors to be appropriate.
Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve can be made to
meet excess claims at any time during the period. At the end of
the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency
Reserve can be released to general reserve.

2.22 Dividend
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Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting
period is disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’
equity.

Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group during the year are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (ii) to raise financing for its
purchase of assets through issuance of debt securities; and (iii) to
provide mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Als and secured by residential properties
in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee cover to Als in
respect of loans originated by such Als to SMES in Hong Kong; and
(v) to provide insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage
originated by such Als to elderly people. By their nature, the Group’s
activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Group manages the risks in a prudent manner in sustaining the
Group's financial performance.
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3.2

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at corporate
level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters
including financial and non-financial risks. The policies and limits
are monitored and reviewed regularly by various management
committees, including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee, Transaction Approval Committee and Operational Risk
Committee which report to Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards
for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and
Liability Committee ("ALCO") oversees the implementation of
market risk management and investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible
for the independent review of risk management and the control
environment. The most important types of risks are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk which includes currency risk and
interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk
on liquid funds and investment securities is limited because the
counterparties are mainly sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies,
banks and companies with credit ratings in accordance with the
investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio,
which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts
in full when due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end
of the reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for
managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt prudent
asset purchasing criteria and insurance eligibility criteria, (iii)
conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv) ensure adequate
protection for higher-risk assets or transactions.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
mortgage loans. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of
customers and counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the
Group’s mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.
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The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention
paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans
and take recovery action such as establishing relief plan with
borrowers in order to maximise recoveries. Loan impairment
assessment is performed regularly and impairment allowance is
charged to income statement in accordance with the guidelines
approved by the Credit Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are
subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolios mainly consist
of properties, reserve funds and cash. For hire purchase receivables,
the collateral types include taxi and public light bus licenses. Loan
portfolio is generally fully secured by collateral.

Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with banks as
the exposures are considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties and short term maturity. Investment securities are
generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities
which are secured by properties or other assets.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in accordance
with the investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group.
These counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the
Credit Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the
amount subject to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair
value of instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e. assets
where their fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatives
is only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits with
counterparties, together with potential exposures from market
movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash,
securities or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding
receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any
single day.
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AEH V. /N
The Group The Company
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W SRR Financial guarantees
(ZRIEHIt (contractual amount
MNELEE) under the MBS programmes) - = 367,252 805,868
BXBSIER Total risk-in-force
— LB R A 55 — mortgage insurance business 16,624,427 17,625,975 17,401,041 18,170,896
- HHERR - other guarantee and
IRBE L 25 insurance business 874,638 3,315 874,638 =
17,499,065 17,629,290 18,642,931 18,976,764

FHRABHERRESTNAT

(b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as follows:

AEH VNG
The Group The Company
F-F—& TF-2-TF F-E—% TF-2-TF
+=A=+—RH +=—A=+—H +=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
As at AS at As at AS at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
FHT T F#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEAINARE Neither past due nor impaired 32,706,938 | 34,647,589 27,605,741 30,842,770
BHAE R RIE Past due but not impaired 431,579 613,099 403,239 551,377
ERE Impaired 4,923 278 4,923 278
TIsRAEE Gross loan portfolio 33,143,440 | 35,260,966 28,013,903 31,394,425
RRORER S Allowance for loan impairment (7,622) (2,029) (7,478) (2,027)
33,135,818 35,258,937 28,006,425 31,392,398
EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

ZF——F 44 Annual Report 2011

129



130

TERPARRQRIARMERN T FA
BHERRE - ISEAKE RN
MBS IF R R GT 1T IR o

281 ZIRFME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The credit quality of loans that were neither past due nor
impaired as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed
by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

RER P /N
The Group The Company
F-F——& TT-TF FF——& TFTT-ZTF
+-—A=+—H +=A=t+—H +=A=+—H +=A=1+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
F#ET FHTT F#ET FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KAl Grades:
1234 1t03 32,693,002 34,621,215 27,591,895 30,819,076
495 4 - 29 - 29
5% 5 13,936 26,345 13,846 23,665
32,706,938 34,647,589 27,605,741 30,842,770

1E 3R BIFELETTNE 37T 5t 7 8
HHLR MBI - HEATRKFENE
5T 22 HE D058 1 e K 15 1R HE AR 1O HE 98

0
am °

AFBREAEMNBHIES - FHED
[RI7K - 915 B 22 HE hnsaE e S AR 1

25 %
HIDTK ©

5 R BIEHE 58 A 5 Ras A MR
m{E R HERAI TR -

FEBIRIBIFA AR 2 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no
previous past due history; and with different levels of credit
enhancements in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and
with different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the
collateral held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.



(c) BEHERBER

€)

B (c) Loans past due but not impaired

LATR A F 2RISR E @ HE R R ER The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans that were

PR BEADAT -

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:

AREH V. /NG|
The Group The Company
F=F——% T T TF F-F—F TF-T-TF
+=—A=+—H +=A=t—H +=A=+—H +=A=1+—H

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
FiT FHAT FiT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR (A : Past due:

=MAAT Three months or less 429,889 609,632 401,687 547910

INAASCAT Six months or less but over
BEI=1H three months 1,174 1,931 1,036 1,931
FEIS 7SN A Over six months 516 1,536 516 1,536
kil Total 431,579 613,099 403,239 551,377

TN EAb{E BT Fair value of collateral and

ZZHEIN5RTE HERY other credit enhancement

INSEE] 2,357,591 2,528,733 2,269,314 2,373,963
SRR EL: S (d) Individually impaired loans
RERFRARGRITAFERARR The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company.
SO HEINE IR PR ER before taking into account the cash flows from collateral held
MNBRESTFH 4,923,000 T (=& and credit enhancement amounted to HK$4,923,000 (2010:
—T 4 1 278,000/87T) ° HK$278,000).
REARKNNFAFHEIEAR The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
KRR HmEREEHQFEAE of the Group and the Company amounted to HK$13,985,000
513,985,000 (= & — & 4 : (2010: HK$388,000).

388,000/87T) °

W =5 (e) Repossessed collateral

ARERH KR AR RIERE 4R AR A9 HEAR The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
mE) T possession of collateral held as security.

W Bl B E SRR AT TIE R TR R Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with
& FTERIA TR REEE G © the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
W Bl ¥l F 0 55 4K 38 R AR F H A Repossessed property is classified in the statement of financial

BFEIE «

position within other assets.

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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(f) Investment securities

According to the investment guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the Group can only invest in debt securities with
a certain minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment
according to rating categories is monitored and reviewed by
ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on
external credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody's
and Fitch). In the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings
for the issuers are reported.

BHEE

FIHIES

AT EIE S Held-to-
REFARAKNLF Available-for- maturity BER
F-_F—H+-A=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company TF#ExT TFi#ET TF#&ET
As at 31 December 2011 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 2,403,398 2,403,398
AA- £ AA+/Aa3 £ Aa1 AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 294,299 5,082,178 5,376,477
A- ZE +/A3 E A1 A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 783,572 783,572
B Total 294,299 8,269,148 8,563,447

REE

EIHAIE S

A SIS Held-to-
ARE R AT Available-for- maturity =t
F=E—FF+=-A=1+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHIT T AT
As at 31 December 2010 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 795,142 2,367,263 3,162,405
AA- Z AA+/AG3 E AaT AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aal 1,139,485 5,293,172 6,432,657
A- 2 +/A3 2= A1 A-to A+/A3 to Al = 372,698 372,698
ekl Total 1,934,627 8,033,133 9,967,760

FEBIRIBIFA AR 2 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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BHOUAFENR  BEBRES5ZE
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MmN EEZHESDRAEERAE
E’]ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁLﬁa@ RTMER e E
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3.3 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise
from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements
and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such
as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise from
the interest rate management of the entity’s financial instruments
of different repricing characteristics. The Group hedges a major
proportion of its existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond
issuance using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the floating-
rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the
Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk management, financing,
hedging, investments are formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are
held to review the latest conditions in the financial markets and the
asset-liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in accordance
with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle office monitors
the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to assess the
potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The
results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor
the sensitivity of projected net interest income under different
interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through
hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel downward shift of
the interest rate curve as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 20 basis point
parallel upward) would decrease the future net interest income for
the next 12 months by around HK$4 million (2010: HK$3 million) and
increase by around HK$4 million (2010: HK$3 million) for a similar
upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2011, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit before
tax for the year would have been around HK$1 million lower (2010:
HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve would have been higher by
less than HK$1 million (2010: HK$1 million) as at 31 December 2011.
If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift
upwards, profit before tax for the year would have been higher by
around HK$2 million (2010: HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve
would have been lower by less than HK$1 million (2010: HK$1
million).

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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As at 31 December 2011, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been around
HK$8 million higher (2010: HK$8 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar
had strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US dollar,
profit before tax for the year would have been around HK$8 million
lower (2010: HK$8 million).

As at 31 December 2011, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$8 million higher (2010: HK$12 million).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit before
tax for the year would have been around HK$8 million lower (2010:
HK$12 million).

As at 31 December 2011, with all other variables held constant,
if the price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment
trust had decreased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been
around HK$20 million lower (2010: HK$15 million). Conversely, if the
price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment trust had
increased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been around
HK$20 million higher (2010: HK$15 million).

The increase or decrease represent management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rate, exchange rates and
market price for a 12 months period.

(@) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial
position and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies
for investment purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency
exposure that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the
Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised
by currency.



Hftshh

I %7t Other foreign BT
HKD USD  currencies Total
LY L5 Fi# FHT FHT Fi#
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FF——F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=t+—H
Vi Assets
NeRkEPRE Cash and short-term funds 9,622,880 353,189 269,096 10,245,165
R AILE SR Interest and remittance
receivables 416,287 167,110 7,601 590,998
PTESRMTE Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
DR A E Loan portfolio, net 25,997,927 7,137,891 - 33,135,818
AR Investment securities:
- EM#\Hj’% — available-for-sale 648,884 1,654,819 - 2,303,703
-FBEEER - held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
HTI%‘J;LW&J\ Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,045 130,045
I &K Prepayments, deposits and
H 5= other assets 27,057 - 40 27,097
&7 73 7= Fixed assets 30,949 - 325 31,274
RS 5 7= Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
REE(E Total assets 41,749,478 13,757,274 994,594 56,501,346
iR Liabilities
VAR Interest payable 136,126 95,541 5,577 237,244
NATIRER - RSS2 Accounts payable, accrued
REAMHGE expenses and other liabilities 4,271,207 1,958 1,718 4,274,883
PTHESRTA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
SRR IO S 5 Current income tax liabilities 134,785 - - 134,785
136 FER I B 57 Deferred income tax liabilities 52,672 - - 52,672
IRES 153 Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 - - 1,630,595
BERITHRSIES Debt securities issued 23,152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
BARITIZIBIES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 367,137 - - 367,137
fF S AR Total liabilities 29,876,276 15,319,068 2,738,761 47,934,105
e Net position 11,873,202  (1,561,794) (1,744,67) 8,567,241
BFEARRIN Off-balance sheet net notional
BRI position * (10,441,252) 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251

*

BERE -

RFERFRINGE LFCEIIMITE
ST E(EZRAURKEARSE R T 5
MIRFE R ) B8 LSS H A F

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the

Group's exposure to currency movements and their fair values.

BETIBIHFAR
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EfANE
BT %5t Other foreign I=ti
HKD USD  currencies Total
EVN Fi# Fi# FHT Fi#
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SFa——tiE As at 31 December 2011
F=/E=ar—g
"= Assets
NekEPRE Cash and short-term funds 9,620,528 353,189 148,130 10,121,847
R AIE SR Interest and remittance
receivables 403,959 167,110 7,001 578,070
PTESRMTE Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
TRAE S Loan portfolio, net 20,868,534 7,137,891 - 28,006,425
AR A Investment securities:
- ATt E — available-for-sale 648,884 1,654,819 - 2,303,703
e - held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
WEARIER Investment in subsidiaries 4,884,648 - 102,060 4,986,708
HEEHISESRIER  Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 120,554 120,554
NI 24 Prepayments, deposits and
H 3 7= other assets 188,787 - - 188,787
Bl e R = Fixed assets 30,949 - - 30,949
RS 5= Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
REE(E Total assets 41,651,783 13,757,274 965,232 56,374,289
fifR Liabilities
IVERERIESS Interest payable 136,010 95,541 5,577 237,128
MR MAFFFSZ  Accounts payable, accrued
Ko B pn A i expenses and other liabilities 4,630,568 1,958 1,478 4,634,004
PTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
S BRI (57 Current income tax liabilities 135,131 - - 135,131
128 FE A LS f5 Deferred income tax liabilities 52,696 - - 52,696
IRBS {5 Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 - - 1,630,595
B RIS Debt securities issued 23,152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
TR EEN Total liabilities 29,868,754 15,319,068 2,738,521 47,926,343
o2 Net position 11,783,029  (1,561,794) (1,773,289) 8,447,946
BFEARRIN Off-balance sheet net notional
ARG position * (10,441,252) 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251

ES

R RRRING B LR CREINTITE
SRIA(EZZRRRKARR T H
MIRBHINEL) BB LERSERF
BERZEF

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the
Ccompany'’s exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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EHAtsm

BT 37T Other foreign BER
HKD uSD currencies Total
REH FHT FAT FAT AT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=E=—=F As at 31 December 2010
+=-—A=+—8H
g Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds

B2 YR8, B LR

PTEERIA
DIRAE B
IR

- AEHE

- FEEEH
SRR B SRR R

TSI =2 I

Interest and remittance
receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Loan portfolio, net
Investment securities:
— available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity
Investment in a jointly
controlled entity
Prepayments, deposits and
other assets

Bl Fixed assets
BIRE R = Reinsurance assets
BELE Total assets
ki Liabilities
RIS Interest payable
MAHIKER ~ M2 Accounts payable, accrued
R E At expenses and other liabilities
TESRTAE Derivative financial instruments
IR I A (5 Current income tax liabilities
128 REFR I £ o Deferred income tax liabilities
IRBE 1 5 Insurance liabilities
B AITRFIESH Debt securities issued
B AITIRIBIE 5 Mortgage-backed securities
issued
A EER Total liabilities
EE Ryl Net position
BEAGRI Off-balance sheet net notional
BREUES! position *

FRFERBRING R L CRINDLT
AR TA(EZRNRKAER
THRMRDONE) WL LETS

HAFHERZER

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the
Group’s exposure to currency movements and their fair values.

EBIIBILHAE 22 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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Hip s

BT 37T Other foreign BER

HKD USD currencies Total
N TR T TR TR
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fo=E—=F As at 31 December 2010

+=RA=+—8

B Assets
NeMEBRRE Cash and short-term funds

RIS KR

PTESBTA Derivative financial instruments
TIRABE ST Loan portfolio, net
EAFRA Investment securities:
- ATt E — available-for-sale
- FEEEH — held-to-maturity
ME R R Investment in subsidiaries

SRR R

TR e R

Interest and remittance
receivables

Investment in a jointly
controlled entity
Prepayments, deposits and

AR = other assets
B R Fixed assets
BRI R = Reinsurance assets
BrEEE Total assets
b Liabilities
RASE & Interest payable
MAHIKER - MfFFFZ Accounts payable, accrued
KM E MR expenses and other liabilities
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
LERBE It 5 Current income tax liabilities
12 JEFR T F f57 Deferred income tax liabilities
IREG AR Insurance liabilities
BRITASIUES Debt securities issued
AR Total liabilities
BFoaH Net position
BERERIN Off-balance sheet net notional
BELEH! position *

"RFERRERING B USRI AT E

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference

ERMTA(EZRARMKAAR T &
MR RE) BB XSRS ERF
EHIZER ©
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between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the
Company'’s exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk
that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels
of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes
but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected
movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on the level of interest
rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which is monitored
regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to interest rate movements, are
included under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.

EERBIIEER
—F——%FF Annual Report 2011
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8,487,923 1,715,112 42,130 10,245,165

- - - - - 590,998 590,998

- - - - - 1,559,187 1,559,187
30,645,025 2,388,984 63,331 24,971 13,507

294,299 - - 2,009,404 2,303,703
144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148

130,045 130,045

27,097 27,097
31,274 31,274
208,911 208,911

39,132,948 4,542,737 835,348 4,599,046 56,501,346

237,244 237,244

4,182,266 92,617 4,274,883
139,582 139,582

134,785 134,785

- 52,672 52,672

- 1,630,595 1,630,595

10,803,727 4,203,815 7,289,711 - 41,097,207

367,137 367,137

4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287,495 47,934,105

23,779,818 338,922 (6,454,363) (9,963,919) (1,444,768)

(12,242,308) (12,365,112) 7,256,541 13,326,420 4,122,710
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8,404,644 1,675,625 41,578 847

- - - - - 578,070 578,070
- - - - - 1,559,187 1,559,187
25,520,147 2,388,984 63,331 24,102 - 28,006,425

- 294,299 - - - 2,009,404 2,303,703
- 144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
4,879,202 - - 856 3,590 103,060 4,986,708

120,554 120,554

187,313 1,474 188,787
- 30,949 30,949
- 208,911 208,911

38,991,306 4,503,250 835,348 4,653,187 56,374,289

237,128 237,128

4,541,195 92,809 4,634,004
139,582 139,582

135,131 135,131

52,696 52,696

- - - 1,630,595 1,630,595

10,803,727 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 - 41,097,207

15,344,922 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287,941 47,926,343

23,646,384 299,435 (6,454,363) (9,963,932) (1,444,824)

(12,242,308) (12,365,112) 7,256,541 13,326,420 4,122,710
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ARSRE
The Group

LA MEZIRFME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo=—TF
+=A=+-8
R=
NeREPHRE
RIS R SCRR

PTESMIA
TERAE 2
MR :

- AT HE
-RHEZEEIH
SRR ISR 7

TN B K

As at 31 December 2010

Assets

Cash and short-term funds

Interest and remittance

receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Loan portfolio, net

Investment securities:
- available-for-sale
- held-to-maturity

Investment in a jointly

controlled entity

Prepayments, deposits and

=MARE
E—F
over

3 months
to 1 year
FHT
HK$'000

FAFLAE  Non-interest

HEpsr= other assets
e vas Fixed assets
BRI A= Reinsurance assets
RERE Total assets
i Liabilities
RASHFIS Interest payable
RIS RifdFFs2 Accounts payable, accrued
e Eptn g f5% expenses and other liabilities
PTHEEMTIA Derivative financial instruments
EL LA Current income tax liabilities
135 EBL AR Deferred income tax liabilities
RGBT Insurance liabilities
BEAIHRSIESR Debt securities issued
BEITIZBIE S Mortgage-backed securities
issued
HRE Total liabilities
FESRRE R D B > Total interest sensitivity gap*
FIEFTET A Interest rate derivatives
(FL2EmE (notional amounts of
ERE A net position)

*RUTATESBIAEERNE KT
RS K B RTTIRIBIEAF M

*before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
the debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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3.4

NG|
The Company
F-2—%F As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+-8
= Assets
NekERES Cash and short-term funds
RIS R SCRR Interest and remittance
receivables
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments
BIRABE B Loan portfolio, net
IEHRR : Investment securities:
- AIHE - available-for-sale
-FEERIH - held-to-maturity
LRI S Investment in subsidiaries

R R IR %

TR B K

Investment in a jointly

controlled entity

Prepayments, deposits and

HEp#ir= other assets
et vas Fixed assets
BRI A= Reinsurance assets
REESE Total assets
i Liabilities
RASFIS Interest payable
RIS R 52 Accounts payable, accrued

Fe Eptn g f5% expenses and other liabilities
PTHEEMTA Derivative financial instruments
EL LA Current income tax liabilities
135 EBL 57 Deferred income tax liabilities
RGBT Insurance liabilities
BEAIHRSIES Debt securities issued
R Total liabilities
FIBSRE RO BA > Total interest sensitivity gap*
FIEFTET A Interest rate derivatives

(€S il:) (notional amounts of

ERE 20 net position)

*RUTATESHIASERNE KT
SRR

ok o e A R

TR W B 18 7 5= [ R B =0 EL 2 A
BRI 3k 7R B2 9 B A A I SK A9 SUR R A
SN - REFE R ENRSRAR
mi - HAERE T AR BIAR & A b
Tt MG &R AR © AEEMND
[R5 & SRR S 1% Ell 5538 K e e 4529 18
MAGRER - AEAREREZASES
R B ERKIFETHEE ©

3.4

=AMAME

—MARE E—F —HFLA L
—MNARW E=AH Over ERF EiRiie=)
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year AFLAE  Non-interest HER
1month  to 3 months to 1year to 5years Over5years bearing Total
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHET FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

* before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
the debt securities issued.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to
repay its payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of
loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflows
and outflows of funds on a daily basis and projecting longer-term
inflows and outflows of funds across a full maturity spectrum. The
Group has established diversified funding sources to support the
growth of its business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio
of liabilities. Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.
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(@) RITRANERE

@)

PRIVEAEHE T =R Xiﬂ%é

NERRFEIRTES RN %

HELENITESRATRMIALE ﬁ%
4 ﬁﬁqﬁﬂiinﬁlﬂmmﬁmi
FAERH ST R TONE LRI

2=
T JLE

BRERERFHOAES D
H R E A AREA ST

RIM o ANEE

ARPTE TEBIERSTEELEER
| 2= 4 B DA T 3 0 4 L 45 B i B 7

Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on gross basis by remaining
contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the projected contractual
undiscounted cash flows including future interest payments
on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.
The Group's derivatives include interest rate swaps that will

$RHA o be settled on net basis; and cross currency swaps that will be
settled on gross basis.
=EMARE
—MABLE E—4 —fEBE
—1AR E=4A Over ERE
Up to Over 1 month 3 months  Over 1year HERE BE
1 month  to 3 months to 1 year to 5years Over 5 years Total
AERH F#ET F#ET FHET FH#T F#ET F#ET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F——%+-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2011
EFTEIRTL Non-derivative cash outflows
ffi Liabilities
BAITHRSIES Debt securities issued (3,693,567) (1,027,594) (12,272,848) (21,350,131) (4,789,991) (43,134,131)
B ATIRIBIES Mortgage-backed securities issued (8,373) (15,481)  (130,367)  (215,381) - (369,602)
(3,701,940) (1,043,075) (12,403,215) (21,565,512) (4,789,991) (43,503,733)
FTEALR/A Gt Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BRTSIEELEER Derivative financial instrument
TTHEEMIA: settled:
- BEEE — on net basis (1,041) (3,041) 2,095 (30,531) (100) (32,618)
- BEEAE - 0on gross basis
piitasp=X-i Total outflow (821,675) (1,726,619) (4,320,424) (3,255,500) - (10,124,218)
A SR Total inflow 815,632 1,730,655 4,310,093 3,239,425 - 10,095,805
(7,084) 995 (8,236) (46,606) (100) (61,031)
=EMARE
—MABLE E—4 —fFBE
—1AR E=41A Over ERE
Up to Over 1 month 3 months  Over 1year RERE B
1 month  to 3 months to 1 year to 5years Over 5 years Total
AR F#ET F#ET FHET F#T F#ET F#ET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F——%+-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2011
EFTEI ST Non-derivative cash outflows
ffit Liabilities
BAfIfSIESR Debt securities issued (3,693,567) (1,027,594) (12,272,848) (21,350,131) (4,789,991) (43,134,131)
FTEASRA (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BTRYIEELEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHEERIA: settled:
- AR —on net basis (1,041) (3,041) 2,095 (30,531) (100) (32,618)
- BEEAE - on gross basis
pitssh=x.I1 Total outflow (821,675) (1,726,619) (4,320,424) (3,255,500) - (10,124,218)
MAEER Total inflow 815,632 1,730,655 4,310,093 3,239,425 - 10,095,805
(7,084) 995 (8,236) (46,606) (100) (61,031)
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=AMAME

—MARE E—F —FUE
— AR E=1MA Over ERfF
Upto  Over 1 month 3 months Over 1year AFALE BE
1 month to 3 months to 1year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
A THAT THAT THET THAT THET THAT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F=F—FT4+=HA=+—H Asat31December 2010

FHTEI SR Non-derivative cash outflows
iz Liabilities
BERITHRSIER Debt securities issued
ER(TIRBIEH Mortgage-backed securities issued
FTHEIML RN (Rd) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTFIEELED Derivative financial instrument
FTHESMIA: settled:
- R - on net basis
- BEEE — 0N gross basis
piteepetii Total outflow
A B Total inflow
=MARE
—MARE B —FRE
—MNAR = Over ERF
Upto  Over 1 month 3 months Over 1year AERE Ba
1 month to 3 months to 1year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
/NG| FHT FHET FH&ET FHT FET FHT
The Company. HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FZE—TF+-_A=+—H Asat31December 2010

AEHTED SR Non-derivative cash outflows
Bt Liabilities
BRIHSIES Debt securities issued
PTERSRA () Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RIS ELEEN Derivative financial instrument
PTESRTIA: settled:
- AR - on net basis
- BEEAE - on gross basis
iptasperait Total outflow
MABE Total inflow
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281 ZIRFME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) EIHA B 247 (b) Maturity analysis
TRIBEERBARZELHENHB RIS The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
HlEliR 2R 2 R RO © relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at

the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

—ME  =EMAME

E=1H -k
EPES 243 —1 AN over over ERF
Repayable Upto 1monthto 3 months Over1year AENE TR BE
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year to 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
A ERHE FHT FH#T F#T FHET FHT FH#T F#T F#T
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FoE——5F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—-H
0 Assets
NekEfas Cash and short-term funds 43,499 8,486,554 1,715,112 - - - - 10,245,165
TRABE Loan portfolio 5,775 570,055 590,720 2,895,741 15,274,291 13,801,375 5,483 33,143,440
AR R Investment securities
- AIfHE — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2,009,404 2,303,703
-RAEZEEH - held-to-maturity - - 93,235 772,016 3,930,126 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
BREA Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208,911 208,911
49,274 9,056,609 2,399,067 3,667,757 19,498,716 17,275,146 2,223,798 54,170,367
ffi Liabilities
IREL S5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BRITHRSIUES Debt securities issued - 3,636,717 890,024 11,268,017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
BRITIRIBIES Mortgage-backed
securities issued - 8,207 14,805 129,453 214,672 - - 367,137
- 3,644,924 904,829 11,397,470 20,585,075 4,932,046 1,630,595 43,094,939
-k EMARE
EZ=1A E—fF —ERE
ENRTE) 3 —1 AR over over ERfF
Repayable Upto 1monthto 3 months Over1year HEME FTRE ot
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year to5years Over 5 years Undated Total
KRR FHET FHET TF#ET F#ET FHET FHET TF#T TFHET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FoF——F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—-H
#= Assets
NeREHPRE Cash and short-term funds 38,642 8,407,580 1,675,625 - - - - 10,121,847
AR Loan portfolio 5,435 524,961 542,277 2,687,505 14,313,731 9,934,541 5,453 28,013,903
R R Investment securities
- A — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2,009,404 2,303,703
-HEZEIH - held-to-maturity - - 93,235 772,016 3,930,126 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
AR R= Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208,911 208,911

44,077 8,932,541 2,311,137 3,459,521 18,538,156 13,408,312 2,223,768 48,917,512

fafi Liabilities

EAth R4 FRIN Other payable - 7,074 15,691 59,666 276,498 - - 358,929
RS {5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BRITHEFIES Debt securities issued - 3,636,717 890,024 11,268,017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207

- 3,643,791 905,715 11,327,683 20,646,901 4,932,046 1,630,595 43,086,731
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—MAE  =MAUE

Z=1A =5 —FNE
EREdEIER —MNAW Over Over BERE
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months  Over 1year AEAE FeBREA Ba
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year to 5years Over 5 years Undated Total
AR FET THET FHT FHET FET THET FHT FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoE—T4F As at 31 December 2010
+=A=t+—H
= Assets
Ne kGRS Cash and short-term funds
FRAS Loan portfolio
IEARE Investment securities
- At - available-for-sale
- FHAEZREIH - held-to-maturity
BIRR A= Reinsurance assets
juatis Liabilities
REG R Insurance liabilities
BRITHESIES Debt securities issued
BRITIRIBIES Mortgage-backed
securities issued
—MNAE  EMAUE
E=1MA B—F —FPAE
LRl —MNAW over Over ERF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months  Over 1year AFEUE TR kil
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year to 5years Over 5 years Undated Total
E: /NG| FHET FHET FHET FHT FH&ET FHET FHET FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-TF As at 31 December 2010
+ZA=+—-8H
= Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds
BHRAE Loan portfolio
IEAIRR Investment securities
- At - available-for-sale
-RBEEEH - held-to-maturity
BRE R = Reinsurance assets
Hfi Liabilities
EARIARI Other payable
REE AR Insurance liabilities
BRITHSFIES Debt securities issued
Br RS - BRI S ROCHR » AR In addition to the above, interest and remittance receivables,
IR At R~ RASEAE - R ATk prepayments and other assets, interest payable, accounts
I R FF S R M AR I {5t - TR payable, accrued expenses and current income tax liabilities
BET-ZA=+—HEItHI129A are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months
MU [El 342 IR o TRV 55 KO &R & from 31 December. Other assets and liabilities included in the
HEHMREMAE WFMEAE+ =4 statement of financial position are expected to be recovered or
=t+—HEUFZa 12D A7 8K settled in a period more than twelve months after 31 December.

T
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3.5

RS RURE
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Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage insurance
which provides cover to the Approved Sellers/Servicers for first
credit losses of up to 25% - 30% of the property value of a residential
mortgage loan with loan-to-value ratio below 90% at origination, or
other ratios as specified from time to time. The Group also provides
financial guarantee cover to Als up to 50% - 70% of the banking
facilities granted to small and medium sized enterprises in Hong
Kong and insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage to
elderly people.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that
the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the
resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk
is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the
Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims
exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could
occur because the frequency or severity of claims are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and
amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less
likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset
of the portfolio. The Group has developed a business strategy to
diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of the
key categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to
reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several
factors. The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a
slump in the local property market. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims.
A drop in property prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity
of claims.
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3.6

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set aside
for meeting future claim payments, the Group calculates technical
reserves on prudent liability valuation assumptions and the method
prescribed in the regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out
quota-share reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers
and excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement in an effort to limit
its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business. The
Group conducts comprehensive assessment including the financial
strength and credit ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance
with the approved selection framework set by the Credit Committee.
The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews.

As at 31 December 2011, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%,
profit before tax for the year would have been HK$6 million (2010:
HK$4 million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by 1%, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$6 million (2010: HK$4
million) higher.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and the characteristics of the financial
instruments.

The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amounts
and fair values of financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented
on the Group's statement of financial position at their fair value.
Bid prices are used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer
prices are applied for liabilities. For all other financial instruments
that are not measured at fair value, the fair value is approximately
equal to their carrying value.

TKE{E NEE
Carrying value Fair value
2011 2010 2011 2010
FiT FHAT Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRR Financial assets
NekERe Cash and short-term funds 10,245,165 5,902,649 10,245,165 5,902,649
REEE BT Loan portfolio, net 33,135,818 | 35258937 33,135,818 | 35,258937
IEFR R Investment securities
- BEEIH - held-to-maturity 8,269,148 8,033,133 8,540,409 8,183,264
SRR Financial liabilities
H Other liabilities 4,182,266 4,163,057 4,182,266 4,163,057
B AITRSIES Debt securities issued 40,205,399 37,190,615 40,211,498 37,193,268
BARITIZIBIES Mortgage-backed
securities issued 367,137 1,529,749 366,404 1,524,932
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The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate
the fair values of financial instruments:

@)

=

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated
fair value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
3 months, is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk
and remaining maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An
insignificant portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a reasonable
estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities - held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices
or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value has been estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based
on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS
Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based
on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value of
other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.



€ THMSHRREAFEITEN ST (g) Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial

A statements

ERAFEITENERIARLT(ZF There is no (2010: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value

—ZF : )AL ENAR T T using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable

BRI ET X market data.

(h) AE{EZEH (h) Fair value hierarchy

TRINTEAFEBHIAFBREAT A The following table shows financial instruments recognised at

NITEN LA TFEITHNERIEA : fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

m AHRE A BRI 2 3R m Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
M(E—Z) : liabilities (Level 1);

B RE—ZAEEZIRNIN - LR m Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in
s} f1 (R Be B 1 (ZNRRAN ) k() (a0 Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
MR T ) MR 2 Hifz (B = directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2);
B): & and

B AR ARIFIEET AR m Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
MR (TAINR 2 HIE) (5= on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

E) e
RERRARF
The Group and the Company
g =R it
Level 1 Level 2 Total
FiB FHT Fi#
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FF——%F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H

U Assets

PTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,559,187 1,559,187

IR R Investment securities
- AHHE — available-for-sale 2,009,404 294,299 2,303,703

2,009,404 1,853,486 3,862,890

TR Liabilities

PTESMTAE Derivative financial instruments - 139,582 139,582

FIATHIART H5RE A Debt securities issued designated
NEEZEITA RS as at fair value through profit or
B RKITHRSIES loss upon initial recognition - 891,808 891,808

1,031,390 1,031,390

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited -I 5 -I
ZF——F 44 Annual Report 2011
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3.7

AREH . YNC]|
The Group The Company
£—F F-F it £—F F-E it
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
FET FET FET F&T FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
F=2—TF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=t+—H
Br= Assets
ITESMTIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,396,621 1,396,621 - 1,372,522 1,372,522
EARHE Investment securities
- AJEHE — available-for-sale 1,469,339  1934,627 3,403,966 1,469,339  1934,627 3,403,966
1,469,339 3,331,248 4,800,587 1,469,339 3,307,149 4,776,488
ffit Liabilities
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 44,372 44,372 - 44,372 44,372
AT IART HE TE F A Debt securities issued designated
NEEZEITA RS as at fair value through profit or
KB ATHRFIESH loss upon initial recognition - 1,937,120 1,937,120 - 1,937,120 1,937,120
- 1,981,492 1,981,492 - 1,981,492 1,981,492

REE R AR RIBETCH A AR T 5
“EHERIA -

HBAEEE

AEFAEERAAN (HREBEBITTS
WRKRIKER [a ] )BT

B 5 FB R RITTRIX BT W R A Al K
(TWERI Rl ) S E B ANHE

mFRAEEAREEENE ) 0 AL
NBRER AR -

B ERARERRIRE MR

mIRARRETRENTTESERA
BREARETRENZE X EREIR
K

B EREENRAEME RS KR -

AREH E IR R RYE W R) &K 9040 89 8
AEREHES|([HE5]]) BRBEERAN
AREEREERSOME  H5I X2
SRIEERDEN] LXK R AR
AT RAELR + HRACLAE BY JA R 28 3 48 7=
LRigs| FHESI T —F——F+ -8
=t —RAXN - HE-FMEARERA
EEMER - HHEIMERKRANTRENR
8% °

FEBIRIBIFA AR 2 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
ZF——F4H{ Annual Report 2011

Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial
instruments categorised as Level 3.

3.7 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

m To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial
Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”);

m T0 safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

m TO support the Group's stability and growth;

m To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to
optimise risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and

m TO maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
daily by the Group’s management in accordance with the Guidelines
on the Capital Adequacy Ratio (“Guidelines”) issued by the Financial
Secretary. The Guidelines, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-based
capital adequacy framework, replaced the previous Guidelines on
the Capital-to-Assets Ratio with effect from 31 December 2011 in
order to strengthen the Group’s capital management framework.
The minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR") stipulated in the
Guidelines is 8%.



BEURTE I B B B KD )R 5l B
EREERERIRSE - EREREA
BE T R 5| K918 I 1 70 (R I B B) ) R
& o FH 0 ALK E T VA R K
ERPNESI B R ARE

TRBARARER T 2 R R G AEA
ARRRAFTRE

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the
Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach or
likely breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the Financial
Secretary. During the year, the Group complied with all of the capital
requirement set out in both guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and
the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

2011
FHT
HK$'000
&N Share capital 2,000,000
{REB = A Retained profits 5,173,228
MUBE % & Contingency reserves 731,562
HAnf Other reserves 173,958
IR A Non-controlling interest 12,169
LABE IS ORI E Allowance for loan impairment
FifEz & under collective assessment 7,622

Bk Deductions (159,962)
AN Total capital base 7,938,577
RATE B E Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.7%
FZE—FFF+_A=1+—HHERHK The comparatives as at 31 December 2010 are computed in
F I BB DA BT BY R AN X R 75 e R 5| 1t accordance with the previous Guidelines on the Capital-to-Assets

B RENEANAFLERSD

Ratio with the minimum Capital-to-Assets Ratio of 5%.

2010

T

HK$'000

i &N Share capital 2,000,000

IREE i A Retained profits 4,561,624

MU % 28 Contingency reserves 437,435

HibEs Other reserves 265,057
LABE IS ORI E Allowance for loan impairment

FifE2 k& under collective assessment 2,029

R BEN Total capital base 7,266,145

RARIY G FE L R Capital-to-Assets Ratio 10.8%*

* T ARFREIHE AN R = LI
Bz ABESR  REMMESIHEOR
BT eE AL 8 - SRR ErE0IEE] - A
AR EF =B ——F+=A=+—
%% 11.3% -

* As there are differences between the Guidelines on the Capital
Adequacy Ratio and the Guidelines on the Capital-to-Assets Ratio, the
capital ratios calculated under the two guidelines are not comparable.
The Capital-to-Assets ratio as at 31 December 2011 under the previous
Guidelines on the Capital-to-Assets Ratio would have been 11.3%.

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
ZF——F 44 Annual Report 2011
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4. RBRIVHETRIRIR

AR BRI T — B R 7= R A5
R & B0 2 fi i R i o A E SIRIB A £
2% REMEE (QETHXERFNARER
(EHMATTIER) - HEEITAE RIS LT R A1 -

4.1, BERASHEEKE

AEHZE D BT HTRAS AT
BIE - BERMES RS MIT ARER
B AREH 2 H A B ERN R A S
& - AR A A S D FI TR
HARRIAS R DH - RBRABEX T
BRI It EB A - L FIERH 2 BEE
AN RHIE R RE —BERANEFTRK
REEZE - REH S RIR 7= BRI RS
FARRHZ SRR o EE R H1HARKI
AT - SRR TR B A5 A R B WAL
BIEESEXAGHEENR - IE TR
Z% - REFA2EPR I EITRKIAE
MmE RS R JTERBRIR - AGE/ME
HSRERGTRERNES -

4.2. FTHEITEMAFEE

HEEFRTZHRNA S TERFER
REETAERE - EREEL AR
) EEATERN - ZFF AR TE
T EERRREE NS RBA LTRSS
KTEBRIT = PrARE T8 M B 4
S8 R U B DA B 4R 48 SR R BR SRR 48R I AT
B - ERITIER T - I FEREY
EARIME 2 Bl - A - FERER
KENRAXREBREET TENFTERR
fEH it - BRUFERZ 2 BRIRNET
ARERMAERN SR T AR FE - &
RESTERTHIES3

4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in
the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management
uses estimates based on historical 10ss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment
similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual 10ss
experience.

4.2 Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where
valuation technigues (for example, models) are used to determine
fair value, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models
are validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial
instruments. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

EBIRIBILAB R A 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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4.3. TEHERTEIE

= AL E AR B B A R SRS 2 ik
ERTERAE  AEFANHEZERE
ERE - EERBARKFLF B
o fEH HIMTES - NEEIFH(EFE
B) LM BT - I HWIRE
W SRRER - Tl RRRRIEE
AEHEAR  BEskBRAsREHINE
3 B RARERIURIE

44 FHFEEI|HARS

REFAKRBEASITENEIS 2
I'Eﬁik%*vﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁi
R R F AN E THETELE S
B %;ﬁhﬁéﬂ%%roﬁﬁﬂﬁ
B AEESIHERARRZ BRI RE
BIZRFEREZEET - RBEASINE
N2 395 i BA K RE B 1B AN + AN S
FAREEFAZERRERNEG - WK<
BR=EHH RN AEBERTHUAR
FEMIEMEKALTE ©
4.5. FFH
REBEEBRBNFEFH - Fmﬂ
B BNFEHERMGEI - BE LS
RARHITHZ IR %&ﬁémFQMW
TEHE - NERAETHITA TN
YT BWIANTEHHE S EEHN R

f5i °

5. SR

AEHEENFRIBAS - EfdlbS - flanh
RERSAMAZBRERMATHRSTE &
148 DU W ER R B 7= £ O B IR R £ #E1T
BR - MARBLSHEAL S - REFITRA]
MNBE 215 SRR EZE It B ERI

BARRBISENE—HEETE  HIEBIS
L F&ES - 55E - DR RF E RO i
E BEEDREZOREBBRIBULSES  MES
O RBESERBRS  TERAT —RHL
H&ﬂ%%%&ﬁ&$¢lw%m%*%WF
NAIMERR - EBXERKAREDX 5 KT
BRI -

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in listed
price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operational and financing cash flows.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, it will
be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale and
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for profits tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.

Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities
such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to
reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary
to mortgage business. The Group is also organised in such a way that
performance is measured at Group level in a single segment for mortgage
business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the
mortgage business is located in four geographical areas, namely Hong
Kong, Korea, Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes
mainly the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment for non-
Hong Kong includes the mortgage assets in Korea, investment in a jointly
controlled entity in Malaysia and investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen,
China. The Chief Operating Decision maker assesses the performance
based on geographical segments.

BERBIFER
—F——%FF Annual Report 2011
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TREVNZRED RN  Bmf REM The following tables represent revenue, profit and other information

156

B o for operating segments of the Group.
EEE
& Non- it
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FHR FHR FH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE_ZT——HF Year ended 31 December 2011
+ZA=+—HLEE
FI2 U A Interest income 867,718 164,884 1,032,602
FEZH Interest expense (124,694) (53,095) (177,789)
B BUA Net interest income 743,024 111,789 854,813
AR E 2 A Net premiums earned 658,854 - 658,854
EfbA Other income 206,191 (8,326) 197,865
ZEWA Operating income 1,608,069 103,463 1,711,532
FAREI% 2 Net claims written back 17,618 - 17,618
et Net commission expenses (108,000) - (108,000)
ZRELH Operating expenses (166,875) (25,057) (191,932)
RIDBERINAE & A Operating profit before impairment 1,350,812 78,406 1,429,218
TFORER & Charge of loan impairment allowances (3,141) - (3,141)
7 oy 2k BRI SRR Share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity - 2,830 2,830
BRA AR A Profit before taxation 1,347,671 81,236 1,428,907
I Taxation (173,225)
INEE A Profit for the year 1,255,682
FRERFFZ Capital expenditure during the year 22,877 - 22,877

EBIRIBILAB R A 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
ZF——F4H{ Annual Report 2011



FEE

BH Non- Bit
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FHET FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE_ZT—ZTF Year ended 31 December 2010
+-A=+—HILEFE
B A Interest income 905,246 236,137 1,141,383
FEZH Interest expense (96,906) (73,896) (170,802)
B BUA Net interest income 808,340 162,241 970,581
EUAHAR T 2N Net premiums earned 583,377 583,377
HAob g A Other income 165,692 4176 169,868
ZLEWA Operating income 1,557,409 166,417 1,723,826
PR RSN Net claims incurred (6,345) = (6,345)
et Net commission expenses (159,101) (159,101)
ZEYH Operating expenses (136,842) (34,583) (171,425)
RITRERTNAE & A Operating profit before impairment 1,255,121 131,834 1,386,955
‘ﬁ?k;ﬂﬁ@?&' Write-back of loan impairment
allowances 16,663 - 16,663
7 5 FE R i SR8 Share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity - 2,259 2,259
R T A A1) Profit before taxation 1,271,784 134,093 1,405,877
FiIm Taxation (172,015)
REE G Profit for the year 1,233,862
FRNRANFFZ Capital expenditure during the year 8,802 64 8,866
EEH
=& Non- Bit
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
TFH#T TFHT FH#T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F_F—% As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H
BERE Segment assets 48,982,599 7,388,702 56,371,301
HEIE SIS IR R Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - 130,045 130,045
REEE Total assets 48,982,599 7,518,747 56,501,346
7R Segment liabilities 40,667,094 7,267,011 47,934,105
EES
BB Non- Bt
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FHT FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F_ETHF As at 31 December 2010
t=—A=1+—H
IR Segment assets 42,832,359 12,069,899 54,902,258
HRER SIS R Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - 130,720 130,720
B BB Total assets 42,832,359 12,200,619 55,032,978
DEMR Segment liabilities 35,477,850 11,953,088 47,430,938

BEERIBIEFER

28] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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6. FIEUCA 6. Interestincome
AEH

The Group
2011 2010
FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
WRAEE Loan portfolio 623,425 855,015
Me kGRS Cash and short-term funds 100,937 31,311
IERRR — kW Investment securities — listed 98,285 75,054
53R — LM Investment securities — unlisted 209,955 180,003

1,032,602 1,141,383

ANEE A B WA B 3E132,0000 (= FE—= Included within interest income is HK$132,000 for the year (2010:
4 : 323,000/ 7)) MRIE RERZAITAS  HK$323,000) with respect to interest income accrued on individually

N impaired loans.
7. FIBXH 7. Interest expense
AREH
The Group
2011 2010
FH&T FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MTRFENBHREEMNEITEF - Bank loans, debt and MBS issued wholly repayable
B AITERS RIRIBIE within 5 years 151,690 143,647
BT RENBRZIEH Debt and MBS issued not wholly repayable
B RIS RIRISIE within 5 years 26,099 27,155
177,789 170,802

REFHSXHBIE174128T(ZE—F4% :  Included within interest expenses are HK$174 million (2010:
1.6712870) HIEUAFEZAIT AR EE  HK$167 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through
T o profit and loss.

158 EBIRIBILAB R A 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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8. IRBfREERBFRILSZHIWE 8.

Revenue account for mortgage insurance and

e guarantee business
AEH
The Group

2011 2010
FHT AT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
ER% (Kixa) Gross premiums written (Note a) 644,102 1,038,249
BREREE Reinsurance premiums (114,569) (87,791)
1RE& 2% 250 (MHE 27(a)) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 529,533 950,458
RFHRIR BB /(18h0) 44 Decrease/(increase) in unearned premiums, net 129,321 (367,081)
BB ER 2R 2 A (F)E 27(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 658,854 583,377
BRE% /(F4) 23 (fE27(b)) Net claims written back/(incurred) (Note 27(b)) 17,618 (6,345)
®EEEHERE 2 Net premiums earned after provisions 676,472 577,032
Hei Commission expenses (125,785) (175,967)
BREARNASZH Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 17,785 16,866
ezt e Net commission expenses (108,000) (159,101)
BB (FED) Management expenses (Note b) (29,526) (22,248)
AR Y S Underwriting gains 538,946 395,683

F5E Note

@ —E-—FRNEREIZRAERBARKIL
S MBoRET_E——FHEENTE
ISR 2 R /Nl STR A9 4R R 5 - —
F-TFENERELIREZBREULS -

(@ Gross premiums in 2011 were mainly derived from mortgage insurance
business with a small portion of premiums and guarantee fee written
from reverse mortgage and guarantee to SMEs launched in 2011. Gross
premiums in 2010 were all derived from the mortgage insurance business.

(b)) EEFZAHEI0ZEZHH—En (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.

9. HubUgA 9. Other income
AEH]
The Group
2011 2010
TF#&T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRFIEFREE A RS BRTI R Early prepayment fees and late charges 14,903 18,278
SCHZER Exchange difference 51,049 35,479
SR TEANFERSM Net change in fair value of financial instruments 3,366 309
AMHHE EMIRRMRERA Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 65,071 43,595
HERRMW 2 (MHE12))  Net gain on disposal of investments (Note 12) 64,952 64,752
Efb Others (1,476) 7,455
197,865 169,868

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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SRIEATFEZRDEL FUATFIA LM :
()VEE N AFEX R AT AN TE RS
640 BT (ZFE—FF : 1.88128 ) ki
IR E AFESHRE70FBT(ZE—F
F:1.83ZBTT) » RVIEENAAFEZ &
T ARG AHTAE T A A FEWE 100 55T (=
T—FF : 1,000 5ETT) RIEEAAFEEA
HARBHNE RTHRZ IS A FES 5007
BT (ZZE—FF : 1,500 5/487T) °

10. EXZH

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of
(i) HK$64 million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair
value hedge (2010: HK$188 million) and HK$57 million fair value l0oss on
the hedged items (2010: HK$183 million); and (ii) HK$1 million fair value
gain on derivatives designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2010:
HK$10 million) and HK$5 million fair value loss on issued debt securities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2010: HK$15 million).

10. Operating expenses

AREH
The Group
2011 2010
T#HT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B RAKA Staff costs
e kgl Salaries and benefits 124,411 107,797
BRERA — REHK Pension costs — defined contribution plans 6,396 5,706
DRE Premises
itk Rental 9,929 7,800
Hfth Others 6,311 6,679
EEME Directors’ emoluments - -
718 (Bff5E 25) Depreciation (Note 25) 8,609 12,928
W2 FMNBRSS Financial information services 5,627 5,510
ot [e) 3% Consultancy fees 9,615 12,494
Mgt RS EXZH Marketing and advertising expenses 8,135 964
HLET Other operating expenses 12,899 11,547
191,932 171,425
1. BEEUNEN S 11. Auditor’s remuneration
AER
The Group
2011 2010
F#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HIZRS Audit services 938 880
HibARSS Other services 1,068 859
2,006 1,739

EBIRIBILAB R A 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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12. HERTTRIW IS HER 12. Net gain on disposal of investments
ANEEH]
The Group
2011 2010
F#T FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HER R AU ES S0 - Net gain on disposal of investments:
- TYF—A—BETHEER — realisation of amounts recognised in reserves
BRIARFRIN (FE31) up to 1 January (note 31) 51,884 40,554
- NEEFERE B — net gain arising in current year 13,068 24,198
64,952 64,752
13. BERVRE (% &)/ Bk 13. (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment
allowances
ANEEH]
The Group
2011 2010
F#T FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIRORME (&) /Bl (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment allowances
— A& (FHE 20(b)) - collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) (3,141) 16,663
14. FHIN 14. Taxation
(a) FLREWBRAMBRHBIINA : (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
ANEEH]
The Group
2011 2010
FHT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBFEH Hong Kong profits tax
— HEARITSHL — Current income tax 169,114 171,681
- NEFE IR — Adjustment in respect of prior years - 16
169114 171,697
128 FE T Deferred taxation
- AFEXH — Charge for current year 411 318
173,225 172,015

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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BLANGE [E 7 A Y il 1 ROIR B U AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% ( —FE— T4 : 16.5%) K = (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
THEBBNISNIL & » BTEHILAR Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
REE16.5% (ZFE—FF : 16.5%) under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
WEEHERITE SR ZH - (2010: 16.5%).

AEANBRBAENNFHINSRAE The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
BREITEMNBICCTNESOT ¢ the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate

of Hong Kong as follows:

AER
The Group
2011 2010
F#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAE A= A Profit before taxation 1,428,907 1,405,877
1#16.5% (—ZF—Z4F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2010:16.5%)
MR RITE 235,770 231,970
S ¢ FE R i) SE A 1) Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly controlled
WS entity (467) (373)
BIRBFLEUA Income not subject to taxation (89,138) (82,023)
AT FF 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 27,060 22,425
HEFEIFE Adjustment in respect of prior years - 16
BRI 2 Taxation charge 173,225 172,015
(b) MFIKRRAMBIIRES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:
AREH Y /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
TFi#ExT FHIT TFi#ExT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LHAT I A R Current income tax liabilities 134,785 133,560 135,131 134,532
12 FEFH IR A f57 Deferred income tax liabilities 52,672 37167 52,696 37167
187,457 170,727 187,827 171,699
F_E——FR-_F—FF+_A There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
=+—HB ' BIEERERRK RIBIE 31 December 2011 and 2010.
FiIm o

162 EBIRIBILAB R A 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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BIERTN CR =)/ A fRAY £ BARED The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities

DRENZDIOT ¢ and the movements during the year are as follows:
Z:S
The Group
hREBL TR BEKE
Accelerated Impairment ATEEY WM& F xR
tax allowances Fair value cash flow AR
depreciation and provisions changes hedges Total
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoE=—ZFF—-HA—H As at 1 January 2010 3,448 (12,299) 33,088 (9,028) 15,209
FlasRm (E14%)/f0k (Credited)/charged to
the income statement (207) 525 - - 318
TR R Charged to equity
(FfF5E31) (Note 31) = = 17,307 4,333 21,640
FZ=—ZFF+=-—A=+—H Asat31December 2010 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
T amzA R Charged to the income
statement 1,805 2,306 = = 4111
FHR SRR Charged to equity
(H$E31) (Note 31) - = 9,316 2,078 11,394
F-_F——%+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2011 5,046 (9,468) 59,711 (2,617) 52,672
V. VNG|
The Company
PER IR BEKE
Accelerated Impairment AEEE ML IR
tax allowances Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation and provisions changes hedges Total
FHEIT FHET FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—=—=F—A—H As at 1 January 2010 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
FlaaRm (E1%)/Nk (Credited)/charged to
the income statement (207) 521 - = 314
TR HER Charged to equity
(Ff5E31) (Note 31) = = 17,307 4,333 21,640
F-Z—TF+-_A=+—H Asat31December 2010 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
TR0k Charged to the income
statement 1,805 2,330 = - 4,135
TR Charged to equity
(HE31) (Note 31) = - 9,316 2,078 11,394
F-F——4+-H=+—H Asat 31 December 2011 5,046 (9,444) 59,711 (2,617) 52,696
FH=AAN - BEAERBEFRI There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
R/ AREEWRE /T e liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
15. REERF 15. Profit for the year
AN FIMSIREFTEAERE %M N1,226,370,000  The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the
BT (ZF—FF 1 1,199,473,0007%7T) ° Company to the extent of HK$1,226,370,000 (2010: HK$1,199,473,000).
EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited -I 63
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281 ZIRFME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. Ix 2 16. Dividend
AR
The Company
2011 2010
FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HUR AL B R 8A% 0.1757%8 7T Proposed dividend of HK$0.175
(ZB—=FF:017587T) (2010: HK$0.175) per ordinary share 350,000 350,000

F-ZET——FEN-_FT-FTFEMNW-_F—F4F The dividend paid in 2011 and 2010 in respect of 2010 and 2009 were
M-_TBEREEREDBINISZBT(FR/RYE  HK$350 million (HK$0.175 per ordinary share) and HK$500 million (HK$0.25
WA%0.1757 7T ) M52 T (B L @AX0.25  per ordinary share) respectively. The directors proposed a final dividend
BIL) T-E——FMWA=+H ZEFZE in respect of 2011 of HK$0.175 per ordinary share on 30 April 2012.
ER - B ——ERAKE SR E®AZ0.1775%  The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable as at 31
TC o WIENBREHTIAF_E——4%+=  December 2011.

R=+—H®RRE -

17. & BEHPHRE 17. Cash and short-term funds
AEH Y /NG|

The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F#&T FHT F#&ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R17UE Cash at banks 43,499 49,470 38,642 36,918
RITEHATT Time deposits with banks 10,201,666 5,853,179 10,083,205 5,732,591

10,245,165 5,902,649 10,121,847 5,769,509

RANEREXRMS AL RZERVELWMBBIE  For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
UTBERSAMBEIT=1NANE NS - equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of transaction.

ARER P /N

The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F#&ET FHT F#&T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ri7l%e Cash at banks 43,499 49,470 38,642 36,918
RITEBIFR Time deposits with banks 9,942,514 4,495,604 9,936,345 4,404,640
e kERIESIAE Cash and cash equivalents 9,986,013 4,545,074 9,974,987 4,441,558
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18. MUWH B B ICER

18. Interest and remittance receivables

REH ¥ /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FisT FHET F#&T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT E T RIS, Interest receivable from
- MERmBEL — interest rate swap contracts 240,949 497,467 240,949 495,491
— IEAIE R — investment securities 88,046 81,330 88,046 81,330
— RITEEGER — time deposits with banks 12,461 2,345 11,861 2175
DURRE A BRI B R Interest receivable and
SRR instalments, in transit from
loan portfolio 249,542 76,008 237,214 66,236
590,998 657,150 578,070 645,232

19. FTESMT A
(a) RIRFTETR

REFAR A TITE LA AARER
WM - it EBmE - BRI
EACIHENENSSHITE ¥
INRITE  STETAED RN FE
Tt A IR A FESI S RN
JREIR R LA o

HBHRFEER A EI R EBR
BE— AN REMNAE - HHIS
ST R FEBE R FEGR
BETHRMESIN ZERXHTY
KA - AEFHETMR NI
ZNFREBTERENEERRE
YRBERA - AEFSEITAF
B BUENHELLE] - RHipHIR
BEFSENE RN -

19. Derivative financial instruments

(a) Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group’s financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative
instrument are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
or hedging instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges
as defined in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes place
except for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair
value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts and
the liquidity of the market.

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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281 ZIRFME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the statement of financial position but do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do
not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks.
The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market
interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms.
The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative
financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments
are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate

significantly from time to time. The fair values of derivative
instruments held are set out below.

A EEH]
The Group
2011 2010
ath/ &4/
BAXER AFE el NYE
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional 0 fafi notional BFE Buf5
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
F#T FHT Fi#T FET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
()  HEBEAAFEEZWHILA () Derivatives designated
MaHPTET R as at fair value through
profit or loss
St Interest rate swaps 5,448,996 63,220 (13,880) 7,443,726 64,754 (26,822)
Laest currency swaps 7,890,297 11,696 (12,884) 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093)
74,916 (26,764) 77,844 (34,915)
(i) BEARFEI R (i) Derivatives designated
PTHETA as fair value hedge
Fl= = HA Interest rate swaps 21,418,545 1,250,727 (18,607) | 27,330,675 1,029,206 (2,819)
gpkt-tl Currency swaps 16,503,853 233,544 (94,211) 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487)
1,484,271 (112,818) 1,318,777 (5,306)
(i) BEAIN SR RE (i) Derivatives designated
PTETA as cash flow hedge
S Currency swaps - - - 2,354,149 - (4,151)
BRIATER /(5) Total recognised derivative
B assets/(liabilities) 1,559,187 (139,582) 1,396,621 (44,372)
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(b

—

AAF
The Company

2011 2010
a4/ a8/
BAXER AR el AR
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional AP fafi notional BFE ol
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
Fi#T F#T F#T FET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() IEBEAAFMEZMLILA () Derivatives designated
MaHPTET R as at fair value
through profit or loss
St Interest rate swaps 5,448,996 63,220 (13,880) 7,443,726 64,754 (26,822)
it currency swaps 7,890,297 11,696 (12,884) 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093)
74,916 (26,764) 77,844 (34,915)
(i) FEBEARFEN R (i) Derivatives designated
PTHETA as fair value hedge
ESEy Interest rate swaps 21,418,545 1,250,727 (18,607) | 26,630,675 1,005,107 (2,819)
=g Currency swaps 16,503,853 233,544 (94,211) 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487)
1,484,271 (112,818) 1,294,678 (5,306)
(i) FEBEAIN SR RE (iii)  Derivatives designated
PTETA as cash flow hedge
gt Currency swaps - - - 2,354,149 - (4,151)
EFIASTE R /(Huff) Total recognised derivative
BAR assets/(liabilities) 1,559,187 (139,582) 1,372,522 (44,372)

Xt
i

it
R

(i)

(ii)

HiESN
PTETEARN
me

1% o

T EmE

D FEX
REHE A

FTRERE &
MR R miH o

P& X

A6 F 5 R B DL & A X Y 5 T
XD R ITANSR
R E D INCRE ©

SFEX R I E XS
N GESI=PS

VHEXN P EEZBER
2 BT AANFER
(ECIbE e by I R E o)

(b) Hedging activities

(i) Fair value hedges

fixed rate financial instruments.

(ii)

iy
L2

Cash flow hedges

under cash flow hedge.

BETIBIHFAR

a] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of interest
rate and currency swaps that are used to protect interest
rate risk resulting from any potential change in fair value of

The Group hedged a portion of foreign exchange risks
arising from variability of cash flows from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments using currency swaps

ZF——F 44 Annual Report 2011
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281 ZIRFME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) EERARBERFEFEREL (c) Replacement costs and potential future credit
exposures
BEEXANEBEFRAETNEBERIEE The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all
BERITET RS ARAE o« BERKE derivative contracts that have a positive value when marked
BIX & & FUERE R AT B th X455 to market. The potential future credit exposure amounts refer
(FE37) It HEK S & - AEFMK to the amount as computed in accordance with the Guidelines
BERZ SN FTRAMIER on the Capital Adequacy Ratio (Note 3.7). The Group has not

experienced any non-performance by its counterparties.

PTETAERYMNEE KA RBIEAREK The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure
ERRNEETMET T - ZESMHF amounts of the derivative contracts are as follows. These
Tt ASER G FHITN M EE LHE amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral netting
E0)=A K arrangements with the counterparties.
AREH
The Group
2011 2010
BIERK BIEARR
EHRBE (BN
Potential Potential
BEEMRA future FEERA future
Replacement credit Replacement credit
cost exposure cost exposure
F#&ET F#&T FHTT FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MEREGL Interest rate contracts
— =4 R — Interest rate swaps 1,527,223 131,599 1,442,892 139,612
LREY Exchange rate contracts
— iR ER — Currency swaps 263,227 806,232 332,268 661,650
1,790,450 937,831 1,775,160 801,262
Y, /NG|
The Company
2011 2010
BIERE TBIEARFK
(R BT
Potential Potential
BEHA future FEERA future
Replacement credit Replacement credit
cost exposure cost exposure
F#ExT TF#ET FHT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MERELH Interest rate contracts
— 4= Bf - Interest rate swaps 1,527,223 131,599 1,416,817 139,612
SLEREY Exchange rate contracts
- S — Currency swaps 263,227 806,232 332,268 661,650
1,790,450 937,831 1,749,085 801,262
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20. GEEX
(@)

|FE
BRAERKE

20. Loan portfolio, net

(a) Loan portfolio less allowance

AEHR P /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F#&ET FHT F#&ET TFAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIBHIRAEA Mortgage portfolio
(2] Residential
- &% - Hong Kong 20,402,305 18,081,110 15,442,530 14,932,355
— 8o — Qverseas 7,239,972 11,912,250 7,239,972 11,912,250
ke Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
IEAAE Securitised portfolio
(Ff$E33) (Note 33) 169,762 717,786 - -
JEIRIBRRAS Non-mortgage portfolio 1,331,401 549,820 1,331,401 549,820
33,143,440 35,260,966 28,013,903 31,394,425
RROREK S Allowance for loan impairment (7,622) (2,029) (7,478) (2,027)
33,135,818 35,258,937 28,006,425 31,392,398
F_FE——F+_A=+—8 " UK As at 31 December 2011, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted

RALONEETE » RRITTARIZ
BT ERNIBERT - /IR
eI FAFRE R+ —F (=

—Z2FNF) MBRFAEK
BT -TRTFINH -

THRER & B ATRAR HARE

average remaining term of 11 years (2010: 9 years) on a
contractual basis, without taking into account any prepayment
of local mortgage loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio
is in the year 2050.

Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the

TS ERHB DT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:
RER V. /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

DIFOBER® Total allowance for

S S BT loan impairment

HE SR as a percentage of

Ao the gross loan portfolio 0.02% 0.01% 0.03% 0.01%
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281 ZIRFME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) RB|EAREENIRRERE (b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio
AEH P /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fisn SECI Fisn SECI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HETHE Collective assessment
+—H—H As at 1 January 2,029 14,011 2,027 13,975
FlkzsRMiL#%/  Charge/(released) to
(3£ (FE13)) income statement (Note 13) 3141 (16,663) 2,999 (16,629)
W Bl 2 M B R Recoveries of loans previously
written off 2,452 4,760 2,452 4,760
&Y IERKE Unwind of discount on
allowance - 79) - (79)
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 7,622 2,029 7,478 2,027
TEH BT FOR BT & - B & BHR DT Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into
SRR B BT {E - BEERREIN account the current market value of the collateral of the
MRl B R ASER R EK % - delinguent loan. There is no impairment provided for overseas
FW - BFURE K % 18,0007 (= and commercial mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance
T—FF : 7,000%7m) ERKEKE for loan impairment of HK$18,000 (2010: HK$7,000) has been

= (fHE25) ©

transferred to repossessed assets (Note 25).

RAE R EE MR E BEIT RS Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a portfolio
T basis are analysed as follows:
AEH P /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F#&ET FHIT F#&ET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERFESEE  Gross impaired loan portfolio 4,923 278 4,923 278
RHORER R Allowance for loan impairment (591) (22) (591) 22)
4,332 256 4,332 256
DIRORERES Allowance for loan impairment
BEREE as a percentage of gross
BEMBED L impaired loan portfolio 12.0% 7.9% 12.0% 7.9%
BETRAE Gross impaired loan portfolio
BASTRAE as a percentage of
BEBD L gross loan portfolio 0.01% - 0.02% =
LALA & 2 TR AT AR SZ 1R 5134 &R A Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment
YR FTE BT ROUR B 14 % 77,031,000 for loans not individually identified as impaired amount to
BIT(ZE—F4F : 2,007,000/7T) ° HK$7,031,000 (2010: HK$2,007,000).
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(c) BRAEANRMERTRR S (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan

portfolio
REFARARAT
The Group and the Company
2011
R AYAL
AR Y LY HRREAE A RIS ER
RI{E FSBN Total
Present value Interest minimum
of minimum income lease
lease payments relating to payments
receivable future periods receivable
Fi# FH#x F#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FLATT BR8] R 4R M : Amounts receivable:
- —FNR — within one year 110,457 24,274 134,731
- —FFEERFN — after one year
but within five years 399,125 76,599 475,724
- BFfE — after five years 821,819 97,583 919,402
1,331,401 198,456 1,529,857
REE RANA]
The Group and the Company
2010
4V GIEED)
BIRRAEL)  RREARIAT RILEER
FINYLE FBA Total
Present value Interest minimum
of minimum income lease
lease payments relating to payments
receivable future periods receivable
T T T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FLATR BR i) R s R Amounts receivable:
- —FNR — within one year 57,467 10,492 67,959
- —FEERFR — after one year
but within five years 193,302 31,305 224,607
- i — after five years 299,051 28,696 327,747
549,820 70,493 620,313
F_E——F+-_A=+—BE=F There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
—E=F+ZA=+—H  AEARRK at 31 December 2011 and 2010 of the Group and the Company.
7N BT Bk B e A 5T R ORI R
(EE7 &=
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21. EHIRT 21. Investment securities
(a) TT{EHEES (a) Available-for-sale securities

AEFARANAF
The Group and the Company

2011 2010
F#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAFEYIKMHRSSIES  Debt securities at fair value
bR Unlisted 294,299 1,934,627
WAFEYIKEAMIES  Other securities at fair value
TEHEELM Listed in Hong Kong 2,009,404 1,469,339
A EIE AR Total available-for-sale securities 2,303,703 3,403,966
EMIFAERX S EEES REHF Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
KRE - investment trust.
R EATHRIZE B 54 B] 4 1 & 1E 540 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
T ¢ issuers as follows:
AERRARLF
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
F#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITR Efth & B A4 Banks and other financial institutions 294,299 1,368,020
NI Corporate entities - 66,719
AR ERAT Central governments - 499,888
Hth Others 2,009,404 1,469,339
2,303,703 3,403,966
A SRR AT ¢ The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
AERARARLF
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
F#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
+—H—H As at 1 January 3,403,966 3,613,064
#80 Additions 645,167 4,263,000
B K B2 [e] Sale and redemption (1,853,946) | (4,620,012)
i Amortisation 931 (1,088)
NFEET) Change in fair value 107,682 143,631
HNTSEH Z 5 Exchange difference (97) 5,371
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 2,303,703 3,403,966
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(b) FHEEZHIES

(b) Held-to-maturity securities

AERRARLF
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
TF#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

EHMASR AT KB 551UE % Debt securities at amortised cost

TEHEELEM Listed in Hong Kong 1,495,927 1,014,324
TEBRINET Listed outside Hong Kong 3,029,614 3,024,472
4,525,541 4,038,796
kL Unlisted 3,743,607 3,994,337
BEEIEIEAEH Total held-to-maturity securities 8,269,148 8,033,133

EIEAHTHE
-RKEEEH

— held-to-maturity

Market value of listed securities

4,692,973 4,181,338

BRITIAER DT A 22 BE S

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers

T as follows:
AEFARANAF
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
TF#&ET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITR HAb A Banks and other financial institutions 5,198,773 5,742,185
NI Corporate entities 1,294,334 623,601
NEHAY Public sector entities 894,070 863,630
FRRBU Central governments 830,863 737,822
HAth Others 51,108 65,895

8,269,148 8,033,133

FAZZHIESHR RN

The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as
follows:

REF KAL)
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
TFH&ET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
+—H—H As at 1 January 8,033,133 5,817,998
B Additions 1,743,272 4,341,842
HERER Sale and redemption (1,508,858) (2,130,621)
b e Amortisation (10,761) (7,093)
HNTSCH Z 5 Exchange difference 12,362 11,007
FH+=—A=1+—H As at 31 December 8,269,148 8,033,133
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22. MiBATIIRE 22. Investment in subsidiaries
VN

The Company
2011 2010
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e EmRKS - BKAME Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 103,060
Fi B A EIFT R FRIN Due from a subsidiary 4,883,648 3,102,572

4,986,708 3,205,632

MiE A BRI LI TEEE#E - 7 The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed term of
BTIAFEITE - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

FT—2——F+=-A=+—8 ' lEARFNIE The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are:

BT -
EA AR 3Lt 2 B £1T /i M AESE FRi 5 SRR BR AL
AR Place of FEWE Particulars of issued/ Effective
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital equity held
BRI EEARAR B PG EE e S e 1,000,00078 7T 100%
BRERREEIST
HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 100%
Management Limited and servicing of HK$1 ordinary
share each
MR GEERRERER AR HE BB/ RL S ARM HZITEM G 90%
Bauhinia HKMC Corporation PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million 90%
Limited business registered capital
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23. HEHEHIFRE 23. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

AREH
The Group
2011 2010
FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
=l = As at 1 January 130,720 115,190
FOBRFR I f5 B2 1 g ) Share of profit, net of tax 2,830 2,259
HNTSE 23 (£ 31) Exchange differences (Note 31) (3,784) 13,108
BNz D) Other equity movement
- N FEEE (FE31) — fair value reserve (Note 31) 279 163
FH+=—RA=+—H As at 31 December 130,045 130,720
V. /NG|
The Company
2011 2010
F#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e ETRRD - RAE Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554

Fo_E——F+-_A=+—H " E@EZ4H=K  The details of the jointly controlled entity as at 31 December 2011 are:
BB -

HERFH
FRFERZ 5 LEBRESLE
i A B St ERITRAKNEE el % of ordinary
AR Place of FEWF Nominal value of Class of shares
Name incorporation Principal activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC Berhad IR R/ FEE RIS Sm1ZT il 50%
BREEDT 1T
Cagamas HKMC Berhad Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million Ordinary 50%
business of RM1 each
AR F T HEIE SRR R BRI T The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interest in
a jointly controlled entity is as follows:
2011 2010
F#ET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BrE Assets 130,709 131,217
ffi Liabilities (664) (497)
=N Share of net assets 130,045 130,720
ON Revenue 4,633 3,927
FE R AR Share of profit for the year 2,830 2,259
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24. TfFTERIR « &R HEMB = 24. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

AEH P /N
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

FET FHT FEx FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Ek Repossessed assets 454 3,861 454 3,861

NI 2pe Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
RYET B E ( E) Dividend receivable from

KRS available-for-sale

investments (listed) 14,363 14,032 14,363 14,032

ot RGN Other receivable - = 161,268 =

EAh Others 11,530 9,016 11,952 10,577

27,097 27,659 188,787 29,220

H b 57 U 30 10 2 & 45 Bauhinia MBS Limited LA~ Other receivable represented the amount drawn by Bauhinia MBS Limited
@ Bauhiniatz BIEH4 it R 1TEVIEBIES »  for the redemption of the MBS issued under Bauhinia MBS Programme.

25. BEIET 25. Fixed assets
A EEH
The Group
DAERE
LN
Office
HEMIE  equipment, "E
Leasehold furniture R il Motor ot
improvement and fixtures Ccomputers vehicle Total
TET BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT=ZF—FF5—F—HIKE$3  Netbook amount as at
1 January 2010 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
NE Additions 77 259 8,530 = 8,866
HrIBCHTE 10) Depreciation charge
(Note 10) (2,016) (923) (9,970) (19) (12,928)
HNTISL SR Exchange adjustments 7 17 33 - 57
F==—FF+=-A=1+—H Net book amount as at
K /3 31 31 December 2010 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
NE Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22,877
T /4% Disposal/write-off - (258) (28) - (286)
BB E 10) Depreciation charge
(Note 10) (335) (335) (7,939) - (8,609)
HNTL AR Exchange adjustments - 14 26 - 40
F-FE—F+-"A=+—H Net book amount as at
THK T 148 230 31 December 2011 4,157 996 26,121 - 31,274
F_F——5+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2011
BXANME Cost 12,918 7,085 151,016 226 171,245
Zit#rIH Accumulated depreciation (8,761) (6,089) (124,895) (226) (139,971)
TR TET 148 &0 Net book amount 4,157 996 26,121 - 31,274
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ARH
The Company

DAEEE
RARES
Office
HEMWLIEE  equipment, "E
Leasehold furniture FE A% Motor B
improvement and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
FET FAET FHAT FRT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F==—F—FA—HIKE 23  Netbook amount as at
1 January 2010 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
NE Additions 72 240 8,490 - 8,802
Ein=| Depreciation charge (1,718) (568) (9,517) (19) (11,822)
F==2—=F+=A=1+—H Net book amount as at
JliEE:E 31 December 2010 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
NE Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22,877
#riA Depreciation charge (232) (204) (7,472) - (7,908)
F=2—%+="A=1+—H Net book amount as at
T TR 14 30 31 December 2011 4,157 991 25,801 - 30,949
F—E—H+="A=+—H As at 31 December 2011
BRAME Cost 12,918 7,057 149,606 226 169,807
214718 Accumulated depreciation (8,761) (6,066) (123,805) (226) (138,858)
T B 74 %0 Net book amount 4,157 991 25,801 - 30,949

26. RIfTMEIN « Rt FF R Efh 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

Pafi liabilities
REH AAF

The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fi#ExT FAT Fi#ExT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Rz MR I f M-I S2 Accounts payable and

accrued expenses 74,215 113,043 74,407 146,710
ELf RS R Other payable - = 358,929 467,734
Hb sl Other liabilities 4,182,266 4,163,057 4,182,266 4,163,057
Hhix & Other provision 18,402 15,037 18,402 14,765

4,274,883 4,291,137 4,634,004 4,792,266

HipmEmREAT -_ET=F+_AK_-FZF Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit

mE—ABEEBFITERX ([FBHFX DB enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of

3% B3 18 ST N3R5 Tr 22 HE B0 IEAAN © the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) in December 2003
and January 2004.

BE-_Z——F+-A=+—8 ' &AQ7MA Upto 31 December 2011, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage
Bauhinia MBS Limited H & 30128 #3857 %  loans to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company
TEIF 54k - IR HBRLIFLES 5WFE  continues to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net”
B BIARIBT R [ TR A 28] - AR T to the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability
[ E b Jy 1~ 5030 | #1A — %€ 843 Bauhinia MBS~ due to Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other payable” has also been
Limited®yfafmme F—F——F+_-HF=+—  recognised. As at 31 December 2011, other payable was HK$358,929,000
B ARRBMESHRARPOEMNARIA  (2010: HK$467,734,000) in the Company’s statement of financial position.
358,929,000/ 7T (= F —F 4 : 467,734,000 7%

JT) °
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27. (REAGRBIRES T 27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
FEERARE A FRAAT]
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2011 2010
£ BRE HER E BIRE A
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHT Fi# FHT i T T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RABARERBREARE Provision for unearned
premium and guarantee fees 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770
RREBRKE Provision for outstanding
claims
- Bk /(UR[E) R - claims reported/(recovery) 1,881 (2) 1,883 - (164) 164
- BFEEARBIRER - claims incurred
but not reported 59,798 9,446 50,352 84,611 14,771 69,840
61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004

1,630,595 208,911 1,421,684 | 1,773,665 204,891 1,568,774

(a) RiHHARBRIBRBAERZ TS (a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned
AT premiums and guarantee fees
AEARAAT FEFRAAR
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2011 2010
£ BRER 50 E5 AR %
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FiET FHT Fi#T FHIT FHT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
F=H=F As at 1 January 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 | 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
ELER 22 (B E8) Premiums written (Note 8) 644,102 114,569 529,533 | 1,038,249 87,791 950,458
EREIMR 3R (FHE8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (764,240) (105,386) (658,854) | (721,622)  (138,245)  (583,377)
F+=R=+—H8 As at 31 December 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449 | 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770
(b) RREBFREEZNFIOT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding
claims
AEARAAT EX L) Z NG
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
20Mm 2010
B2 BRE 50 4 BRE T
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHT T FiR FHIT FHT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
F—-A—-H As at 1 January 84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
SANLEES Claims paid (690) - (690) - 1175 (1,175)
AL EIEEES Claims recovery 764 225 539 508 202 306
B =R R(FHES) Claims incurred (Note 8)
- BHIRER - claims reported 1,807 (63) 1,870 (2,599) (1,515) (1,084)
- BFEAEERBRER - claims incurred
but not reported (24,813) (5,325)  (19,488) (3,189) (10,618) 7,429
F+=A=t+—8 As at 31 December 61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004
(c) FafR3eBilix (c) Liability adequacy test
HMITAEFTENEE - ZEELIAEY The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
MERERBEZAEEFHEMELEN contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
SRENUNGEI MRS RF - handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2011 and
——ER T FE+ A=+ — 2010, the Group's insurance liabilities are adequate.

B ANEHARBRR AL o
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28. EARITRSIESH

28. Debt securities issued

AEH P /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fi BT Fi T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T SH AR T KRG Debt securities carried
RFIESH at amortised cost
RS TRITKIGS DIP notes 2,199,566 4,118,849 2,199,566 4,397,000
HEAR S A AT RIS MTN notes 1,497,209 = 1,497,209 =
TR R ARSI KA Total debt securities carried
RBIUEHEEN at amortised cost 3,696,775 4,118,849 3,696,775 4,397,000
&R AN FAEXT A Debt securities designated
REIUES as fair value hedge
RELEIT IS DIP notes 12,949,071 20,774,658 12,949,071 20,774,658
TERFAITITKIREAMFS  RBIP and other notes 50,488 699,802 50,488 699,802
PHEIR AR ITITRIRS MTN notes 23,509,065 = 11,597,306 = 23,509,065 | 11,597,306
FEERR A Total debt securities
ENE =X designated as
fair value hedge 36,508,624 33,071,766 36,508,624 33,071,766
FHaHIA BT E AL Debt securities designated
NEEZHITNT as at fair value through
HIRSIES profit or loss upon
initial recognition
ERTAIRIGS DIP notes 697,917 1,756,638 697,917 1,756,638
BEFERTITIREMES  RBIP and other notes 193,891 180,482 193,891 180,482
THEHIART 35 E A Total debt securities
NFETHITA RS designated as at
RIS R fair value through
profit or loss upon initial
recognition 891,808 1,937,120 891,808 1,937,120
B EITRSIUEHFEZ Total debt securities issued 41,097,207 39,127,735 41,097,207 | 39,405,886

TER AEETORMINNIEE 125 S/
i 3R #91,000,000,000% 7T ( = & — & F !
1,074,000,00078 7T ) & LM ER A FEZRMA T
Az » ZEERAGZ A FERDRTEE
MEBHEE o THIRFAIAR IR TE AR FER
it AR e RARKEERAEEARES
YME TR A GRFRHE AT HD
567,392,000 7T (= ZF —ZF4F : 612,080,000 %

L) ©

%S IETE A TSI © BB 1T
EABSREAATZEHRRARED -

During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition
HK$1,000,000,000 (2010: HK$1,074,000,000) nominal value of such financial
liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value changes are
attributable to changes in benchmark interest rates for the debt securities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amount
of the financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition is HK$567,392,000 (2010: HK$612,080,000) lower
than the amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in
the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated
as at fair value.

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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ERTBRFIESFNEDRLAT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

AEH Y /NG|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FHT FHTT FHT FiT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F+—H—H As at 1 January 38,470,471 44,023,620 38,748,622 44,023,620
K17 Issuance 28,549,278 8,279,703 32,957,267 10,103,499
R ] Less: Redemption (26,707,868) | (13,838,443) (31,394,008) | (15,384,088)
GNTISE 3 2R Exchange difference 529 5,591 529 5,591
BIMELE Total nominal value 40,312,410 38,470,471 40,312,410 | 38,748,622
Prik R PEaHE0 Unamortised portion
of discount (655,896) (697,973) (655,896) (697,973)
NEEFR Fair value adjustment 1,440,693 1,355,237 1,440,693 1,355,237
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 41,097,207 39,127,735 41,097,207 39,405,886
NEE RKITHIGR S - Notes issued during the year comprise:
AEH b N
The Group The Company
=% RHfR % &% RS
TEIt EITit%I TRt E1TiH%I
DIP MTN DIP MTN
FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEAfTEANmE Amount issued at
nominal value 6,941,000 21,608,278 11,348,989 21,608,278
B YERFRIN Consideration received 6,936,403 21,588,783 11,344,358 21,588,783

BB B R 1TH 5 55Uk 5 1 [ AN &= [ T 4 4 32
Fr MATEZERSIESE Elet —REER

S RIEBRARR -

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group,
and are issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and

refinancing.
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29. EXTIRBIES

29. Mortgage-backed securities issued

AEH]
The Group
2011 2010
FHET FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TP T A AR T K RO HR 3B IES MBS at amortised cost
Bauhinia #&ZE U411 X Bauhinia MBS Programme 367,137 805,650
18 AN FEX MR IBIES MBS designated as fair value hedge
Bauhinia #&ZE U411 X Bauhinia MBS Programme - 724,099
BEAITIRIBUE A B0 ([ )£ 36) Total MBS issued (Note 36) 367,137 1,529,749
F+—HA—H As at 1 January 1,505,650 1,976,121
R e Less: Redemption (1,138,513) (470,471)
BEYNE Total nominal value 367,137 1,505,650
NEFE Fair value adjustment - 24,099
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 367,137 1,529,749

FRERIBIE 59 N R A R MMM RE - HH
AR EIRIBR AR RE RS M AT
BB A A 528,691,000 T (—F — =
£ ¢ 1,185,520,000% 7T ) B E N AT K ITIRIBIE
FROHIR R (HHE36) ° B AITIRIBIEF S8+
367,137,000 7t (= F —F 4 : 805,650,000 7%
70) EE B AR EHELR °

All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
Company. HK$528,691,000 (2010: HK$1,185,520,000) of mortgage portfolio
are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 36). Out of the total MBS
issued, nominal value of HK$367,137,000 (2010: HK$805,650,000) are
guaranteed by the Company.

30. ig& 30. Share capital
—F——FR
—F—FF
2011 and 2010
FET
HK$'000
JETE Authorised
BRREE 187TH) 30 2R E @Ak 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BRITREE Issued and fully paid
BARE(E 178 7TH) 2012 A E @R 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000

EBIRIBIIFB MR 7] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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31. HibfigE

31. Other reserves

AEH
The Group
R fEs  ~FEIES i iEE Lt
Contingency  Fair value Hedging Translation HER
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT FHET FHET T FHET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-2-25—A-F

AR SIS A TFERS)

- KRB z5 50
— HEREI (HHE12)
— RIS 3 E0
— HEEHISE R
(M$5E 23)

— e

— B (FE 14(b)
&I

- BERTHMEmEER

BRI S = A
Lreayeit il

- BRARERN A FERS

— B (F5E 14(b)
HRTCRZEDR

S VA
— FRRIE BSR4 (FE 23)

As at 1 January 2010

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
securities:

- unrealised
net gains
— realisation on
disposal(Note 12)
— unrealised
net gains-jointly
controlled entity
(Note 23)
— amortisation *
— tax effect
(Note 14(b))

Cash flow hedges

- net gains arising
from hedges
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income

— fair value changes
transferred to
income
statement

— tax effect
(Note 14(b))

Currency translation
difference
— subsidiary
— jointly controlled

entity (Note 23)

Hit 2 H K

Other comprehensive
income

AR B A Fe iR B A
KSR ZE 4 80H 50%

Nt

XU B ik [0 2= (R B A

Transfer of 50%
of net risk premium
earned from
retained profits to
contingency reserve
Release of contingency
reserve to
retained profits

S AT SHTrAIHEETISFERERAEE  * amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-

B HRIE 27 a TURES RS o

sale securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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REHE

The Group
REefEsE  AFEES Xt & CRfiEsE
Contingency  Fair value Hedging Translation =t
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT FRT FRT FHBT FRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F—=—=FF+—F=+—H/ Asat31December2010/
—F—%—A—H 1 January 2011
A EIFANAFERS):  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale

securities:
- RAIIK E 280 - unrealised
net gains
- eI (MHE12) — realisation on
disposal (Note 12)
- RBYUR S SR - unrealised net
— HEFE SIS R gains — jointly
(Fff)E 23) controlled entity
(Note 23)
— P — amortisation *
— I (P 14(0)) — tax effect
(Note 14(b))
B yp et Cash flow hedges
- BEETHM2EmEER - net gains arising
TN XA A from hedges
W zs 58 recognised
in other
comprehensive
income
- AR AT EERD) — fair value changes
transferred
to income
statement
— BT (P 14(0)) - tax effect
(Note 14(b))
KL EZER Currency translation
difference
- B A — subsidiary
— FEEHRHISER (BfE 23) —jointly controlled
entity(Note 23)
HfbeEE Other comprehensive
income
IR BRI B ER Transfer of 50% or 75%
MBSARF2 82 50% of net risk premium
R 75% E M %S earned from

retained profits to

contingency reserve
F XS i & 1k Bl = (R B A Release of contingency

reserve to

retained profits

F-ZT——F+"A=+—H  Asat 31 December 2011 731,562 302,615 (13,244) 10,911 1,031,844

e RENSHTFAIREEESFEREREE ¥ amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-
FERIE A F U as R P4 © sale securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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b N
The Company
KU 5 & ANEEEE Xk
Contingency Fair value Hedging =t
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-2-25-A-F
AU T A T

As at 1 January 2010

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:

- REY P - unrealised net gains
- HERNZI (FHE12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12)
— P> - amortisation *
— BT (FFE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b))
L& XS Cash flow hedges
- BEETHEM2EKERN - net gains arising from
i NINES POyt o= hedges recognised in
Wz 8 other comprehensive
income
- BAR SR AT EED) — fair value changes
transferred to income
statement
— B (FfE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b))
HfbemElEs Other comprehensive income

AR B A F AR 2R
KBS ARZE 5 80H 50%
=Nt

A X B i &1k m =R A

Transfer of 50% of net
risk premium earned from
retained profits to
contingency reserve
Release of contingency
reserve to retained profits

—E—FF+-—A=+—H/
—F=—F—H—H
A HEIE S AT EE

As at 31 December 2010/
1 January 2011

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:

- REYU P - unrealised net gains
— HERZEI (FHE12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12)
— P> - amortisation *
— FRI (B 14(b)) — tax effect (Note 14(b))
L& FRXS Cash flow hedges
- BEETHM2EKRER - net gains arising from
BB X A /) hedges recognised in
Wz e En other comprehensive
income
- I A= RO A TEES) — fair value changes
transferred to
income statement
— BT (BfE 14(b)) — tax effect (Note 14(b))
HfbeElEs Other comprehensive income

B R F AR A
KBS IR ZE 480 50%
2 75% = M B fifs

X B i &3k B = R B i A

Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
risk premium earned from
retained profits to
contingency reserve

Release of contingency
reserve to retained profits

FoE——%+-A=+—H

(13,244)

As at 31 December 2011 731,562 302,173 1,020,491

* ARASHTAHEEESEREREE  «

amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale

BIHRIE 2R TR R © securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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32. 5HEXRALITIMEKRRS
(a) AAFBMRATRMNLES ER

AFDFARE - ARBSHERALIT

MTEMRS e

SRFNEXNMEEcRERR ([F
BEERNHNRZIBEEESSER
FTEiEMmS TARREE RERS
PRt E REERIEIRS - INCE
BB ESE BRI AIEAE 300
ZETHENMER - T2 ——F
+TZA=+—HBNMZ=FE—ZFF+=
A=+—R8  #ERE080 - F=F
——&+=ZA=+—8"  xQA¥}#
SEERRTEBINCESERRGF
ZE—FTF :5{ZFT) °

S5ERFXEMAER S B IE R F]
AKZEAHBDPLRERTF =T ——
FWENIN8ZABTL(ZE—FF :
1.544Z 7T ) IRIGITFK °

S5 AMBEAREERBEREERA
AR S BREREETEET @ #E
AEAZERT [ EREFNAAE
SRE RIS SR RIS RS ©

SRR RINR ZBHENEFR AR
RATEVRBIE S B AR (FHE33) o
FW AT AR ST OTENUKRAT
e R ERAAR A LB AF R4 RILE

ENEEER - BGNENT

() FEBASXZH

32

. Material related party transactions

(a) The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong

as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company entered into
various transactions with the following related parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”),
a Government-related entity, included subscribing to the
custodian and clearing agent services provided by the Central
Moneymarkets Unit (“CMU") Service operated by the HKMA. The
Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided the Company
with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility, and there was no
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010. The Company held no investment in the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Bills and Notes (“EFBN") as at 31 December 2011
(2010: HK$500 million).

Transactions with the Government of HKSAR included renting
office premises from The Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”)
and purchasing mortgage loans of HK$118 million in 2011 (2010:
HK$154 million) from the FSI.

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, included the
Company'’s provision of mortgage insurance cover for mortgage
loans purchased by such subsidiary in the course of its ordinary
business.

Transactions with the SPEs included acting as the guarantor for
the MBS issued by the SPEs (Note 33).

The amount of income and expenses arising from these
transactions during the year, the balances of the amounts due to
and from the relevant related parties were as follows:

(i) Income and expenses for the year:

AEH
BT % BT AR K AL4E
The Group
The Government and
government-related entities

2011 2010

F#&T FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FLBWA - INCE SRR RGFH Interest income — EFBN 112 274
b - i TARR Other expenses — CMU service

FEZ5RS 1,009 914

DRE - Premises - rental 7,833 6,368
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(i) T+=A=+—B%1%
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(i) Balances as at 31 December:

LY EYN
The Group The Company
B BAF WRA BT
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Special purpose entities
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
F#T FHT Fi#T FHET F#T FHT Fi#T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R &R B 2R BRI Amounts due from
(B 22 FaptE 24) group companies
(Note 22 and note 24) - = - - 4,883,648 | 3,102,572 161,268 -
RIASHER AR B FRIA Amounts due to group
companies - - - - - - 122 32,800
Hotth SRR (BESE 26) Other payable (Note 26) - - - - - - 358,929 467,734
HA 515 (FT)E 26) Other liabilities (Note 26) 4,182,266 | 4,163,057 4,182,266 | 4,163,057 - = - =
RIBIEHEITRI Financial guarantees
W25 HER under the MBS
programmes - - - - - - 367,252 805,868
RLIRAR BA Total risk-in-force - - - - 776,614 | 544921 - -

(b) TEEEERAR
IREERNEEXEEREN KR
TR - 151E MR AR E L S E A
T BRESRSREEAA

REREEETEBRARNFHELE -

(b) Key management personnel

Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors and senior
officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

2011 2010

FH&T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

e Rk HE M5 B AE A Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 15,845 13,678
B EREF Post-employment benefits 1,088 951
16,933 14,629

EBIRIBILAB R A 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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33. IR AT RIESHFL
RARBEARIFIZAR - AEBREBILER
% (85 —) B R A A & Bauhinia MBS Limited s
TIRBIIRARIEF T - BfRIZAR R
BATEILIRIBIIRAS - XEHILAIES
BRRBUERBEMEEKBBT AL RS
FORRAN L EHEIA ©

HANRKRIUEEGRIBERAS MBS RE
B & L9RUR R B A Y 4 K &R 0 WU B K% [ 4
B 22 A IRIAMRBITRAS -

SARAHERAEMTT AR LR BT A
& RBELL AN R X — 25 (ML R
)R R ER - BREBESIN - M2 FEL
IEFRINRIS T RA A o RFRBIRA SRR
S 5REEMSIRRRAIA -

AMAFULETRFIRLB M AT E 2EA A
ZHRIBIRAS - NARBERIIZBIE

AR E G L2 SiE 5008 B TR B B9 A
RFME VT DB AFERLL B B L2 A
#oy RASRINE D SRR~ AT E -

FEEEMNEREZER ) RBRE12SHEEIKE
— FRABAE - SFRAFRSHRA AR
FHR o £ R IR A B B IR A FHES] - Wz
SFAETARRAR R T4REM SRR
EFFAIUTABRKILN R o TREREILT
FRAAME TAREM S IKIRRE LTI
BREFBENERER ) ERE12SMEHN
FREUTAZEMSIRRARNVRIBIRAS 2K

BER DL ©

33. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE") namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise
mortgage portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two
SPES. These transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
mortgage portfolio concerned from the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual
right to receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise
transfers mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is
retained. These mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of
financial position to the extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs, that do not
qualify for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the
fair value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and
the part that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities requires
consolidation of SPEs when the substance of the relationships between
the SPE and the reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by
the reporting entity. This results in consolidating back the transferred
assets to the consolidated statement of financial position. The following
summarises the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage portfolio
transferred to the SPE that were derecognised from the Company's
statement of financial position but were consolidated back to the
consolidated statement of financial position as a result of HK(SIC) INT-12.

2011 2010

T#HT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Bauhinia MBS Limited (Ff#;% 20(a)) Bauhinia MBS Limited (Note 20(a)) 169,762 717,786
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34. %18 34. Commitments
(a) FA (a) Capital
AEHR Y /NG|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
TF#ExT FET TFi&T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERUOEBRITS Authorised but not
contracted for 9,490 19,166 9,490 19,107
(b) 2 EFRY (b) Operating lease

T2RBK - REASADEIHENELEE
)T H B AR SR AR & B

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed

DHTEAT as follows:
REH LN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
T T Tt T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DAREW Office premises
T F—F not later than one year 19,633 318 19,396 =
ZT—4% later than one year and
2 not later than five years 33,007 - 32,057 =
52,640 318 51,453 -

35. ERIBIRE
AKANBSZEBRKE AR EESENK » £5
B IR F o

FZE—F+=ZA=+—H ' NEERLM
NRN166IZBT(ZFE—FF - 176128 T)
HABZBET(ZE—FF : 24{ZF L) BR
ZEBRR A RESEBRE - MARETNET
AARIR T 141ZB T (= —F4F - 15212747T)
HIRBE ©

ERTHIMNZET(ZE—FF - 15242 7T)
B AR R AGE 8 KU AR EZ - 30128 7T
ZE—TF 1912%7) NIRRT B 5
MEE iz ABARABRENZHE S EZ
B XU fEXT R+ T AN B TR B 5650 B XUBS -
BREER T RA XL IR ] g AR AT XS ©

35. Mortgage insurance business

The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing
basis with its approved reinsurers.

As 31 December 2011, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$16.6
billion (2010: HK$17.6 billion) of which HK$2.5 billion (2010: HK$2.4 billion)
was ceded to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$14.1 billion
(2010: HK$15.2 billion) was retained by the Company.

Out of the HK$14.1 billion (2010: HK$15.2 billion) of risk-in-force retained
by the Company, the excess loss of HK$3.0 billion (2010: HK$1.9 billion) of
risk-in-force was hedged through the use of excess-of-loss reinsurance
arrangement to reinsure the middle layer risk positions, and the Company
retains a portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss and remote risk
portions.

EBIRIBILAB R A 8 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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36. BRBH

FrR A B BB E R = IR EERIOE SRR 7
HHEITHELE - URIER RIEFMIT RIAE KT
BHRRITERZBIES o IEH T HEER
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BrER RS

36. Pledged assets

SPEs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred
by way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS
in accordance with the provisions under the relevant securitisation
programmes. The security trustee appointed under the relevant
securitisation programmes will enforce the securities over the relevant
pledged assets when the relevant SPE (and, in the case of guaranteed
MBS, the Company as guarantor) defaults in payment under any series of
MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default in respect of
any series of MBS.

AEH
The Group
2011 2010
F#HT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
[SFii %10 Assets pledged
RITE AT Time deposits with banks - 9,567
IERRR Investment securities - 278,151
eI Gk Mortgage portfolio 528,691 1,185,520
NUFIE Interest receivable - 31
528,691 1,473,269
BigER&z Secured liabilities
BAITIRIBUES (MI)E 29) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 29) 367,137 1,529,749

ERFIZ BT A S BIE RIS B A 7 = 8
IEH IR B ITRAS (HHE33) « B LRGN
RAARERRIBESSEHRET [WREE
,%ﬁj MBIA R 7= (FE26)

HEERFER(ZF—FF 1,800 87T) 2
AT RITIEN T ERBEFRULSHFRILE

37. BEMFZHE
FERT-T-—FNA=t+EBEA
Ko

W 25 4%

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio
recorded in the SPE's book (Note 33) and the transferred mortgage
portfolio continued to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to
the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement (Note 26).

No time deposits (2010: HK$18 million) are pledged as security deposits
with a bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

37. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30
April 2012.
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